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COMPANY PROFILE
2 ] i v

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (Stock Code: 2312,
“CFLG” or the “Company”, with its subsidiaries, collectively the
“Group”) is an investment company. Incorporated in the Cayman
Islands, the Company’s shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
October 2002 under Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange.

According to the Investor and Financial Education Council in
Hong Kong, definition of Chapter 21 companies is as follows:

“The primary business of Chapter 21 companies is to invest in
listed or unlisted securities, including warrants, money market
instruments, commaodities, options and futures contracts as well
as other collective investment schemes. As the investment
performance is closely related to the company’s result and return
to shareholders, they need investment managers with
experience, expertise and integrity.”

CFLG principally engages in the investment of listed and/or
unlisted securities, predominantly focusing in the China and
Hong Kong market region. As we strive to create value for our
shareholders, we adopt prudent investment approach in
selecting potential investment opportunities, and at the same
time leveraging on favorable market conditions to maximize
return. Our investment team consist of well experienced
professional with in depth market knowledge, as well as
possessing extensive product knowledge in various investment
products such as stocks, derivatives products, bonds etc.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders,

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to present you with the 2023 Annual Report of China Financial
Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

After enduring a difficult investment environment in 2022 that
were significantly hammered by COVID pandemic adverse
impact, the supposedly turnaround expectation in 2023 by many
investors never surface as the divergence theme in 2023
became very painful for local investors, where mainland and
Hong Kong market suffered further sell off while some other
markets enjoyed bull market run. Hong Kong IPO market also
plummeted to low in recent years where only 68 successful
listing in the mainboard, raising roughly HKD46 billion, a
whopping 56% decline over 2022 aggregate proceeds.
Weakness in the capital market, combined with the downturn in
local property market, had triggered significantly weakness in
related luxury spending and dining sectors.

PRC ECONOMY

China economy grew by 5.2% in 2023 and while the number
meet the government target, recovery growth after covid
pandemic were not as strong as market expected. Positive
impact from stimulative economic policy launched by Central
Government throughout the year were rather short lived and
consumers confidence remain weak. Debt crisis issue among
mainland property developers had spilled to those big names
developers already and such also sparked a huge sell off in many
of the corporate bonds in the sector. Local government high
gearing situation also constrained government spending that led
to the lackluster economy prospects ahead. On the other hand,
weakness of Renminbi against US dollar remained in 2023 in
which may also limit China Central Bank desire to cut interest
rate further to stimulate growth.
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PROSPECT

Sell off in Hong Kong and China stock market continue well into
the first month of 2024 with investors confidence level toward
local market at all-time lowest probably since 2008 financial
crisis. Market outlook clearly remaining quite challenging in view
of the current investing environment. Nevertheless, there are
potential positive signs that could eventually come into play in
the year. For example, total deposits in Hong Kong continue to
grow during first eleven months of 2023, meaning there are
some fresh and idle funds waiting to be deployed into the capital
market. The Group’s financial position remain sound and
continue to hold liquid investments in the portfolio, and well
positioned to capture any further sound investment
opportunities. On behalf of the Board, allow me to express our
sincere appreciation to the shareholders for their continuous
support.

Lui Cheuk Hang Henri
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 23 February 2024

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2023

Al =
S ERFERETBRNESAE T
—mENE—EA  RESHRLTS

NELEHEAREER _ZZTN\FeaE
HLAREE £ &IEE - BN B AR E
BIR - MBI RBEADEREKE - A -
BRE LEBECIEDRALSEFA
BEHEEBER Pl RZZTEZ=F§F
T—EA BEENGEREABRSEER
ERZEHHEES EHFRABELRT
%o REBRBMBARLRGRE Wi
BEREHEIBERIMERENRE
BE AR NWEEENE-—FTHRER
o RAZBRRESZTE  HRENFE
BB G B R o

SRR B

BEfE
HITEF
&8 —T-_WMF-_A=-+=H



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CENEE Y&

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2023, China
Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) was mainly engaged in
short to medium term capital appreciation by investing in a
diversified portfolio of investments in listed and unlisted
securities.

2023 Hong Kong stock market turn out to be a dismal and
forgettable year for most local investors and institutions, where
despite incredible strength and performances in other
established market such as US, Japan etc, Hang Seng Index
("HSI") experienced a complete reverse trend compared to
others and drop considerably last year. Initial surge to intraday
high of around 22,700 level during January 2023 due to
optimism from economic rebound from the full relaxation of
COVID lock down measures was very short lived and
subsequently it is pretty much downhill for local stock market.
Series of economic data from mainland confirm sluggish
economy status, and with continuous strain Sino-US
relationships, combine with weakness in Japanese Yen currency
against US dollar, prompted nonstop and persistent capital
outflow from Hong Kong and China region to other Asian stock
markets such as Japan or India, where Nikkei 225 index
skyrocket 28.2% in 2023. Meanwhile in the United States,
despite some correction in second half of 2023 due to profit
taking as well as the sudden event of Israel-Hamas war crisis,
signs of inflation under control and prospect of possible rate
cutting in 2024 sparked a huge rally in the last 2 months of
2023, and prompted S&P500 index to rise 24.2% last year. For
the year, HSI dropped 13.8% to close at 17,047 while Hang
Seng Tech index fell 8.8% to 3,764. The Group recorded a net
fair value losses on listed investments of approximately
HK$4,951,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Going forward, external macro factors remain the major risks.
While inflation and interest rates are expected to be alleviated
and may boost global market performance, the high geopolitical
risks, particularly the lIsrael-Hamas war and the Sino-US
relations, will cause significant uncertainty to the investment
market. For the Hong Kong and China market region, focus will
remain on how the sluggish mainland economy can be revived to
spark investors desire to return to invest into Hong Kong and
China stock market, which technically speaking is rather oversold
but lack of any kind of positive stimulus. Nevertheless, we believe
that challenges and opportunities co-exist. As such, we will
maintain appropriate investment strategies and constantly
monitor the market changes. Recent completion of fund raising
from rights issue have further bolstered the Group’s financial
position and the Group will continue to identify suitable listed and
unlisted investment opportunities to optimise its investment
portfolio and implement its risk management policy in order to
achieve satisfactory returns to the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of the Group’s listed
equity investments was approximately HK$58,951,000 (2022:
HK$45,913,000) while carrying value of the Group’s unlisted
equity investment was nil (2022: nil).

The Group recorded sales proceeds from disposals of trading
listed equity securities of approximately HK$99,688,000 (2022:
HK$57,553,000) for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
realised losses and unrealised gains (2022: the realised losses
and unrealised losses) on financial assets at FVTPL for the year
ended 31 December 2023 were approximately HK$7,165,000
(2022: HK$10,396,000) and HK$2,214,000 (2022:
HK$5,648,000) respectively. Loss for the year was approximately
HK$7,967,000 (2022: HK$20,502,000) which was mainly
attributable to the operating expenses and equity investments
losses.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Annual Report 2023

RERK  INBEBERRDEEZEZRER
BEBRLNEXBEFENEE WAl
RIR2HRMISRA - BHEABORRRS
- LERACIH—SFHEF RPx
AR BRREMSHRERNTETE
H-HEFBERTPEMSTE  EFHDNHK
A Q0 {a] B 4R (R K B P 3 AR - AR IR
BEERBBRTREBRMRENKE -
M AERE  FELRPEBHER
HEMRE  BRZ EREENRBMEE -
A RAEEREEREW T - Fitt
ZMERFESNRERE  LIHER
ATISEE T TR EREEE —
FEETARENPHAARRL - MAKE
RESEYESEN LM MIFLEMIRER
B BEREES  BEREREERR -
e 43 B SR 2K = 10 (B g

Bt % 2] B8
R-BE-_=F+_-_A=+—H8 A&£E
FHRAEE 2 BREE% A58,951,000
BT (T = — 4 45,913,000 7T) -
MAEBEELETRAKRECRABASS
T ZFF) e

rEEBRBE-_S-_=F+-_A=+—
AEFERE LMRABHEGHER
18 FIE 49 /£99,688,0008 L (Z T = =
% : 57,653,000 7L) cBE_T-_=F
TZA=T—BLFE FBREZEA
FTEAECZUBKEEZESRBERK
BRWaE (CE_—F :BEREBBERE
FINEE) 9 R4 AE7,165,0008 T (= F
— — 4 : 10,396,000/ 7t) 52,214,000
T (ZZF = — 4 : 5,648,000/ 7T) ° &NFE
B2 BB A7,967,0008 T (==
£ : 20,502,000 70) - FEHREER
A K PR ARG B BB FTER



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS RAEARE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group held financial assets at R—-_ZT-—=®+-H=+—H & &
FVTPL of approximately HK$58,951,000 Listed below are the #HEBZBERZIEAFLEHEZHMHEEE

particulars of the Group’s major listed equity securities: #) 558,951,000 L - AEBR 2 T &
MRAFESFIBHIAT :

As at 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2023
RZBZZE+ZA=1-5 BECRCZETIfST-ALER
Approximate
percentage of
investment
Approximate attributable to
Number of - percentage of Market value/  the Group's Dividend Dividend Sales Realised gain/  Unrealised  Fair value
Stock Code  Name of investees shares  interest held Cost Marketprices  fairvalue  netassets received cover  proceeds (loss)  gain/floss)  gain/(loss)
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LIMITED (‘China Energy Storage')
PREVHREREROA(TEE
#)
b 230 ON LOGISTICS INTERNATIONAL 1269 lessthan 1% 9,667 6.08 1116 1282% 131 218 - - (1.91) (1.951)
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DEVELOPMENT GORPORATION D%
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g 88 SMART CITY DEVELOPMENT 9952 415% 8,001 043 439 119% -
HOLDINGS LIMITED (*Smart City"
BUERERARAT (184))
1082 BRADAVERSE EDUCATION (NTL) 2400 lessthan 1% 3991 154 3,69 6.14% - NA - - (576) (576)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2023
RZBZZE+2RZt-R BECRIZE{ZAZT-BLER
Approximate
percentage of
investment
Approximate attributable to
Number of - percentage of Market value/  the Group's Dividend Dividend Sales Realised gain/  Unrealised  Fair value
Stock Code  Name of investees shares  interest held Cost Marketprices  fairvalue  netassets received cover  proceeds loss) gain/floss)  gain/(loss)
558
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R FRELR%R Lk E AAtt A [ 2TE EAt BE  RERE B (B8 (F8) (F8)
(000) (HK§000) [HKS)  (HKS000) (HKS 000) HKSO00  (HKSO0O  (HKSO0D  (HKS'00)
(TH) (Tir) (n) (A (A7) (Fén) (Fén) (Fén)  (Fién)
g 44 HKGB IBOND 2406 (‘HK Bond 2406') 3 lessthan 1% 3,363 %9 3363 559% - N/A 11383 0 - ¢
FRRRERBRASER L0 Hi1% TR
(IZ%1Bond 2406))
3188 CHINA HANKING HOLDINGS LIMITED 3800 less than 1% 2753 08 3,040 5.05% - NA - - %87 %87
(‘China Hanking) HR1% TR
PEFTARARLA (PEFT))
[ HING MING HOLDINGS LIMITED 16328 434% 18,099 0.174 284 472% - N/A - - (1,159 (1,159
(‘Hing Ming) TR
REERERAR (84))
) 3% CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMICAL 500 lessthan 1% 2,150 409 2045 340% - NA 3181 % (108) (19
CORPORATION [‘China Petroleun’) HiM% TR
hERALIRAERAT (48R
{t)
K Other fsted investments N/A N/A 18520 N/A 13,079 21.74% 32 N/A 76,3% (10.466) 1546 6921)
2hinkE TR ik TR TR
Total N/A N/A 80419 NA 58,591 97.97% s N/A 99,688 (7,169) 2214 [4.91)
it i i Wik TR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The realized and unrealised losses on listed investments
amounted to approximately HK$4,951,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023.

For the listed investments held as at 31 December 2023, the
realised gains and unrealised losses were approximately
HK$3,286,000 and HK$1,989,000 respectively. For those listed
investments held but were sold during the year ended 31
December 2023, the realised losses and unrealised gains were
approximately HK$10,451,000 and HK$4,203,000 respectively.

(a)

China Energy Storage

China Energy Storage is a value-added service provider and
electronics manufacturer focused on the “Belt and Road”
cross-border supply chain, particularly integrates upstream
and downstream resources around the value-added
services of the targeted industry supply chain, and selects
key countries and cities along the Belt and Road route with
high economic growth and high market development for
strategic planning. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of China Energy storage for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$54,042,000. As at 31 December 2022, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of China
Energy Storage was approximately HK$359,862,000.

The Investment Committee noted that China Energy
Storage continued to operate at a loss in 2022 due to the
continued adverse effects of COVID-19 that hampered
supply chain of raw materials and in turn raised their logistic
cost and cost of operating material. Market also weakened
demand from selective western countries.

The Investment Committee concurred with China Energy
Storage view that with the rapid growth of the market shares
of new energy vehicles, energy storage has become the focus
of the electronic and electrical equipment market. Therefore,
their intention to vigorously expand the production and sales
of new energy storage equipment and supply chain services,
energy storage system integration, technology and supporting
services businesses, can seek to improve the profitability of
the Company’s energy storage business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(b) CN Logistics

(c)

CN Logistics is principally engaged in the provision of
comprehensive logistics services, comprising air freight
forwarding services, distribution and logistics services as
well as ocean freight forwarding services, with a primary
focus on high end fashion (including luxury and affordable
luxury) and fine wine products. The audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of CN Logistics for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$86,632,000. As at 31 December 2022, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of CN
Logistics was approximately HK$352,271,000.

The Investment Committee noted that CN Logistics, despite
the difficult operating environment, continued to deliver
satisfactory results by achieving growth in their revenue
while their gross profit only dropped modestly, which
demonstrated their management skills during difficult
business operating environment.

The Investment Committee considered that CN Logistics
leading status as a logistics solution provider in the industry
will allow the company to expand with the complete
relaxation of on travel restriction and the reopening of
border. In addition, their self-developed eCommerce
platform could provide exponential return to the company in
a few year’s time.

Virtual Mind

Virtual Mind is principally engaged in the activities of design,
manufacture and trading of apparel, namely apparel
operation; provision of money lending business, namely
money lending operation; and selling of gaming and
animated characters related products, namely intellectual
property application and products operation. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Virtual Mind for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$65,895,000. As at 31 December 2022, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of
Virtual Mind was approximately HK$208,432,000.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(d)

The Investment Committee noted that the revenue and
operating results worsened in 2022 because of lingering
effect from COVID-19 pandemic, that led to deteriorated
global economic environment and tightened financial
conditions, which in turn significantly affected its core
business of apparel operation.

The Investment Committee believed Virtual Mind increased
focus to expand its intellectual property application and
product business, such as by entering into production and
sales licensing contract with a subsidiary of Tencent in
relation to water cup peripheral merchandise of the online
game Honor of Kings, could be beneficial to their business
in the long run.

China International Development

China International Development is principally engaged in (i)
manufacturing and distribution of leather products; (i) retail
of fashion apparel, footwear and leather accessories; and
(i) industrial hemp planting and production of hemp fabric
products. The audited consolidated loss attributable to
owners of China International Development for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$18,936,000. As at 31 December 2022, the audited
consolidated net liabilities value attributable to owners of
China International Development was approximately
HK$46,016,000.

The Investment Committee noticed that China International
Development continued to operate at extra production
costs incurred for catching up the delay in production
schedule of the Group’s Leather Manufacturing Business as
a result of the continuous spread of the pandemic as well
as the pandemic control and quarantine measures and
travelling and logistics restriction implemented in Mainland
China and Hong Kong in 2022.

(d)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B8 W e B o3 A

(e)

The Investment Committee concurred with their
management about look for areas where they can further
improve operational efficiency and reduce costs, and create
and promote products to provide long-term value to
customers and the industry. Their plans to diversify into the
businesses of industrial hemp planting and hemp fabric
product production, if materialised, could diversify their
product portfolio and income streams, thereby improving its
profitability in the long term.

Smart City

Smart City is principally engaged in the activities of
construction business, as a main contractor and fitting out
works, as well as the provision of electrical and mechanical
engineering services, mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Macau, and other construction related businesses.
Their other business include investment in securities,
property investment as well as money lending. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Smart City for
the year ended 31 March 2023 was approximately
HK$10,975,000. As at 31 March 2023, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of
Smart City was approximately HK$150,941,000.

The Investment Committee noted that while the revenue of
Smart City for stayed flat for the financial year, gross profit
decreased due to the low profit margin derived from the
construction segment and realised loss on the marketable
securities investments recorded.

The Investment Committee believed that despite the
remaining uncertain economic environment of greater China
region in the year, Smart City proven track record and their
numerous licenses, permits and qualifications enable them
to continue to secure government contracts in the
considerable future.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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Bradaverse Education

Bradaverse Education is principally engaged in the provision
of private educational services, which include primary
tutoring services, skill course and test preparation courses,
secondary tutoring services and English language training
and test preparation courses. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of Bradaverse Education for the year
ended 30 June 2023 was approximately HK$28,541,000.
As at 30 June 2023, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Bradaverse Education was
approximately HK$111,608,000.

The Investment Committee noticed that revenue from
trading and services income from virtual reality and digital
entertainment division enjoyed strong growth in the past
financial year due to exponential growth in sales of gaming
product while its traditional tutoring service were not
significantly affected by linger impact from COVID-19
pandemic.

The Investment Committee concurred with Bradaverse
Education view that with the application of VR, augmented
reality and artificial intelligence to their distinct businesses,
students can allocate their study schedules flexibly without
geographical and time boundaries, and at the same time,
allow them to expand its business to bigger markets and
new segments. The mixture of traditional learning and
technology-based learning will help to improve their
efficiencies. The new approach of learning and a more
diversified business of the Group could also allow them to
explore more business sectors and provide more
professional education supports also to corporations.
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(g) HK iBond 2406

(h)

HK iBond 2406 is a retail bond issued by The Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China, with the maturity date of 23
June 2024. It pay interest every 6 months and the coupon
rate is based on the higher of (a) the floating rate, being the
arithmetic average of the year-on-year rates of change in
the Composite Consumer Price Index compiled and
published by the Census and Statistics Department of
HKSAR Government based on the results of the most
recent Household Expenditure Survey at the relevant
interest determination date (currently being the
2014/15-based Composite Consumer Price Index) for the 6
most recent preceding months, rounded to the nearest two
decimal places; and (b) the fixed rate of 2.00%

The Investment Committee believed the investment in iBond
is a very effective way of diversifying our portfolio and
effective interest rate return is comparable to fixed deposit
rates in Hong Kong. Moreover, the instrument is listed and
tradable with good liquidity, giving us the option to adjust
our holding depending on current equity and bond market
situation.

China Hanking

China Hanking is principally engaged in the exploration,
mining, processing and sale of mineral resources. The
Company operates its business through three segments,
namely, iron core, high-purity iron and gold. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of China Hanking
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB51,297,000. As at 31 December 2022, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of China
Hanking was RMB1,274,360,000.
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The Investment Committee noticed that China Hanking
operation suffered significantly in the past financial year
because of COVID-19 pandemic that led to escalating
preventive and control measures and in turn trigger much
fewer demand for company products. Nevertheless
management have already made effort to ensure the normal
running of their operations and continuously pushing
forward the major tasks related to the sustainable
development of the Company.

The Investment Committee believed that the company
announcement back in November 2023 about confirming
high margin project in their definitive feasibility study in one
of the Australia project is an encourage development for
China Hanking in long run. Their management should be
well kept abreast of the changing market conditions and
proactively identify investment opportunities in order to
broaden the revenue base of the Group and enhance its
future financial performance and profitability.

Hing Ming

Hing Ming is principally engaged in providing rental services
of temporary suspended working platforms and other
equipment such as tower cranes and generators and
trading of equipment and spare parts. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of Hing Ming for
the year ended 31 March 2023 was approximately
HK$2,369,000. As at 31 March 2023, the audited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of Hing
Ming was approximately HK$117,460,000.

The Investment Committee noticed that Hing Ming enjoyed
a turnaround year as revenue increased while it also
returned to profitability after losses in previous year, mainly
attributable to increased business from the additional tower
cranes to satisfy the need of customers, as well as
increased occupancy rates on existing tower cranes.
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@

The Investment Committee believed that Hing Ming
management have been adopting a positive but yet prudent
approach in their business strategies to enhance their
profitability and with demand for housing will continue for
quite some time, their business could enjoy further growth
in the future.

China Petroleum

China Petroleum is one of the largest integrated energy and
chemical companies in China. Its principal operations
include the exploration and production, pipeline
transportation and sale of petroleum and natural gas; the
production, sale, storage and transportation of refinery
products, petrochemical products, coal chemical products,
synthetic fibre, and other chemical products; the import and
export, including an import and export agency business, of
petroleum, natural gas, petroleum products, petrochemical
and chemical products, and other commodities and
technologies; and research, development and application of
technologies and information. The audited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of China Petroleum for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB66,153
million. As at 31 December 2022, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of China Petroleum
was approximately RMB784,706 million.

The Investment Committee noted that despite the
complicated and difficult operating environment and weak
domestic market demand, they were able to achieve
remarkable results in most business operating lines, and
together with the share repurchase, resulted in a dividend
payout ratio of 71% in 2022.

The Investment Committee believed with current oil prices
stabilized in a relatively smaller range compared to the past,
China Petroleum will be able to lift their upstream earnings
but also enable their downstream operation to enjoy steady
growth and recovery. They also consistently pay out
generous dividend and therefore it is one the best recovery
and dividend pick in the market.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CENEE Y&

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2023, the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$1,179,000 (2022:
HK$22,933,000) which were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"). The Group will monitor the exposure and take
prudent measures when necessary.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group
had no interest-bearing liabilities, and therefore the Group did not
present the gearing ratio which represents the ratio of the
Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities to the total equity of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net assets of
approximately HK$60,170,000 (2022: HK$68,137,000), the
Group had no borrowings or long-term liabilities except for the
lease liabilities.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s total issued shares
was 173,448,741 of HK$0.04 each (2022: 173,448,741 of
HK$0.04 each). The Group had no debt securities or other
capital instruments as at 31 December 2023.

(@) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 15 March 2022, the issued share capital of the
Company was proposed to be reduced by reducing the par
value of each of the issued shares of the Company from
HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital to
the extent of HK$0.19 per issued share (the “Capital
Reduction”). Part of the credit arising from such reduction
would be applied towards cancelling the accumulated loss
of the Company, while the balance (if any) would be
transferred to the share premium account of the Company
which may be utilized by the directors as a distributable
reserve in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”) and all applicable laws.
Immediately following the Capital Reduction becomes
effective, each authorized but unissued share will also be
sub-divided into 20 new shares with a par value of HK$0.01
each. On 20 July 2022, the Grand Court of the Cayman
Islands granted an order to confirm the capital reduction of
the Company and the Capital Reduction became effective
on 25 July 2022. Details of which were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 21 February 2022.
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(b) On 21 September 2022, the Company consolidated every
four issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company be consolidated
into one consolidated share of par value of HK$0.04 each.

(c) On 28 July 2022, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with Lego Securities Limited in respect of the
Right Issue up to 115,632,494 Rights Shares at HK$0.38
each to certain qualifying shareholders. The intended and
actual use of proceeds from the Rights Issue certain was
for general working capital and investments.

The transaction was completed on 27 October 2022. The Rights
Shares are fully subscribed by the shareholders and the
obligations under the Underwriting Agreement has been fully
discharged. A total of 115,632,494 shares were issued. The
gross and net proceeds were approximately HK$43,940,000 and
HK$42,118,000 respectively. The net price was approximately
HK$0.364 per Rights Share.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Realised losses and unrealised losses on financial assets
at FVTPL

The realised losses and unrealised losses on financial assets at
FVTPL from changes in fair value on financial assets at FVTPL
held as at 31 December 2023 to the date of approval of this
results announcement were amounted to approximately
HK$56,000 and HK$3,835,000 respectively.

Rights Issue

On 1 December 2023, the Company entered into an
underwriting agreement with Lego Securities Limited in respect
of the rights issue up to 173,448,741 rights share at HK$0.12
each to certain qualifying shareholders. The intended and actual
use of proceeds from the Right Issue certain was for general
working capital and investments.

The transaction was completed on 20 February 2024. A total of
173,448,741 shares were issued. The gross and net proceeds were
approximately HK$20,860,00 and HK$19,460,000 respectively. The
net price was approximately HK$0.11 per right share.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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Except for above mentioned, there were no material events
occurred after the financial report date.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any significant merger, acquisition or
disposal during the year ended 31 December 2023.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 2 employees. Total
employee benefits expenses (excluding Directors’ emoluments)
and Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2023 were approximately HK$722,000 (2022: HK$838,000) and
HK$1,107,000 (2022: HK$963,000) respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, COVID-19 related government grants
amounted to approximately HK$48,000 have been offset to the
employee benefits expense. The remuneration policy of the
Group is reviewed annually and employees are remunerated
based on their performance, experience and the prevailing
market practice. No Director or executive is involved in dealing
with his own remuneration.

In addition to salary payments, the Group has participated in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
each employee’s monthly relevant income subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there were no
charges on the Group’s assets.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
such requirements may affect the substantiality of the business.
The Group has allocated various resources to ensure ongoing
compliance with rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has in material
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of investments
in listed and unlisted securities, which are exposed to certain
market risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The details are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements under the section headed
“Financial Risk Management”.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the investments of the Group were mainly
denominated in HK$. Therefore, there was no material foreign
exchange exposure to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year, there were no contingent liabilities noted by the
Directors (2022: Nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the significant investments of the
Group are included in the Group’s investments under the section
headed “Equity Investments” in this results announcement.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which
allowing shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
whilst to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Cayman
Islands, the articles of association of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CENEE Y&

The Board of the Company may from time to time determine and
pay to the shareholders such interim dividends as it considers
appropriate. The Board may recommend the payment of final
dividends which are required to be approved by shareholders in
general meetings.

In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form
of any dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall
consider the following factors:

()  the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the
long-term growth aspect of the business;

(iv) the current and future operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is committed to maintaining
good corporate governance standards and procedures to ensure
the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure, thereby
enhancing shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the code provisions of The
Corporate Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as its own code of corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company was in
compliance with the code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1.

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The office of the chairman
of the Board is currently vacant as explain under the section
“CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR”.

Save as aforesaid and in the opinion of the directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, the Company was in compliance
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Group is an investment company listed on the Stock
Exchange under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rule. By recognising
the importance of stakeholders at the Board level and throughout
the Group, we strive to create values to the stakeholders through
sustainable growth and continuous development.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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The Board of the Company has set out the following values to
provide guidance on employees’ conduct and behaviours as well
as the business activities, and to ensure they are embedded
throughout the Company’s vision, mission, policies and business
strategies:

(i)  Integrity — we strive to do what is right;
(i) Excellence — we aim to deliver excellence;

(i) Collaboration — we are always better together;

(iv)  Empathy — we care about our stakeholders — employees,
supply chain and the community; and

(v)  Sustainability — we are committed to a sustainable future.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary, its
business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be
taken to respond to the changes and meet the market needs to
foster the sustainability of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standards of dealings
regarding securities transactions by Directors as set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Company and oversees the
Group’s businesses, investment and strategic decisions and
performance. The Board delegated authority and responsibility
for day-to-day portfolio management of the Group to the
investment manager, while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees.
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Further details of these committees are set out in this report. As
at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of five
Directors including two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri
Mr. Chiu Tak Wai

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”)
Mr. Hui Yat On

Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom

Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles

All Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
Board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board and has met the recommended practice
under the CG Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its
members comprising independent non-executive Directors. The
biographical information of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 54
to 56 of this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group in respect of relevant actions against the Directors and
officers.

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The office of the chairman of the Board is currently vacant that
the roles and duties of which are assumed by the Board. The
executive Director is responsible for day-to-day management of
business. Therefore, a clear division of responsibilities is in place
and a balance of power and authority is ensured.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of
high caliber, with academic and professional qualifications, and
extensive experience in several fields including accounting,
financial, management, etc. With their extensive experience, they
provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the
duties and responsibilities of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have given their annual
confirmation of independence to the Company, and the
Company considered that they are independent under Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles. None of the independent
non-executive Directors has served more than nine years during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Group has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms
will be reviewed annually by the Board. On 12 December 2023,
the Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the following mechanisms at the Board meeting:

(@) Three out of the five Directors are INEDs, which exceeds
the requirement of the Listing Rules that at least one-third
of the Board are independent non-executive directors.
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(b) Apart from complying with the requirements prescribed by

the Listing Rules as to the composition of certain Board
committees, INEDs will be appointed to all Board
committees as far as possible to ensure independent views
are available.

The Nomination Committee will assess the independence of
a candidate who is nominated to be a new INED before
appointment and the continued independence of the
current long-serving INEDs on an annual basis.

Each INED is also required to inform the Company as soon
as practicable if there is any change in his/her own personal
particulars that may materially affect his/her independence.

All INEDs are required to submit a written confirmation to
the Company annually to confirm the independence of each
of them and their immediate family members, and their
compliance with the requirements as set out in the Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are entitled to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be
discussed at board meetings. They can also seek
assistance from the Company’s company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) and, where necessary, independent
advice from external professional advisers at the
Company’s expense.

All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an
open and candid manner during the Board/Board
Committees meetings.

A Director (including INED) who has material interest in any
contract, transaction or arrangement shall abstain from
voting and not be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving the same.

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to INEDs.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has held 8
meetings. All Directors are given an opportunity to include any
matters in the agenda for all Board meetings and are given
sufficient time to review documents and information relating to
matters to be discussed during the Board meetings in advance.
For all regular Board meetings, the Board reviewed the operation
and financial performance, and reviewed and approved the
annual and interim results. And in order to ensure all Directors
could plan in advance their availability, a notice of at least 14
days is given for regular meeting. Details of the attendance of
each director is listed under the section “MEETINGS” in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled
to have access to Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and has the right to seek external professional advice
if so required.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
covering the Group’s business operations, policies and
procedures and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a
director of a listed company. The Group also provides briefings
and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to
Directors and senior management where appropriate, to ensure
awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, during the
period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, the Directors
participated in the following trainings:

Name of Directors

BEEFRHEZESE R _=F—
A—Hz_Z-=F+-"A=+—8BH
[ ZEFEL2ETHEI -

Type of Trainings

BENR b2 kil
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri BEELE B
Mr. Chiu Tak Wai HEE A B
Independent Non-executive Director BUIIHTESE

Mr. Lam Wai Tsin? R4 TR ot A2 N/AT i@ A
Mr. Hui Yat On F—LEE B
Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom PR A0 A ST A B
Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles® LR E L B

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating to directors’
duties

B: reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy general
business or directors’ duties etc.

1. Mr. Chiu Tak Wai was appointed on 11 September 2023.

2. Mr. Lam Wai Tsin resigned on 11 September 2023.
3. Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles was appointed on 11 September 2023.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established the following committees to assist
the Company in the implementation of its functions:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 7 October 2002. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Yat On (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom and Dr. Lau Kin
Shing, Charles.

The terms of reference adopted by the Audit Committee are
aligned with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
terms of reference setting out the Audit Committee’s authority,
duties and responsibilities are available on the respective
websites of the HKEX and the Company.
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The Audit Committee shall meet the external auditor to discuss
any area of concern during the audit or review. The Audit
Committee reviews the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not only
on the impact of standards, but also on the Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Group’s interim and
annual reports.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings and has
reviewed the Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 and audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2022 together with the auditor of the
Group. Details of the attendance of each director is listed under
the section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report.
In the opinion of the Audit Committee, the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards and
the Listing Rules.

Major work completed by the Audit Committee during the year
includes:

— reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim financial
information and annual financial statements;

—  reviewed significant accounting and audit issues;

—  reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications, independence
and performance;

- assisted the Board to evaluate on the effectiveness of
financial reporting procedures and internal control system;

— advised on material event or drawing the attention of the
management on related risks; and

—  reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management, internal control and related
policies.

%TZ%?E@FEEEUPH%TZ%(EW%@  BAEY
F%Efi%@ﬁﬁfﬁxfﬁZTE{TE%%
EREZEGHRNTHBERFRE
ﬁ&i% SHETEMN BREZEEENE
BMAEBEFRHRERFRIETERTE
Az E T ETMRAUNKEER
)?F_Z‘?/gn o

FRN BREESHBIIINGE  WiE
AAEE s ZBMEMNAERHEE_Z
Z=FRA=THIEAREAZREEZ
PHEBEURBE-_T-__F+= H
ST RLEFREZEEREFER
%%ﬁfﬁ’li%iﬁ‘JEA$ﬁ¥E/m#ﬁif/\
g V;,\ SR REFHEEZ
mENEE ETAERI R LR AN o

BERZEENFATKNERTFERE

— EMAEEHER - bRYEER

SESEELE E

- BEHEXREFEERBRFE

— FEHIINEBRBENER BLHN
SEEE

- WMBHEFSAEYBRERERLA
gB%?I%/\)Lmﬁxﬁ |E

- BMEREMARHERATFEEE
EXIRRAER K&

- FHASERAREE RWMEER
SREEBRONABEERERIE -

SRR RAE D0

ZERICESER



30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

18 56 B if Wl

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules, and currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Hui Yat On and
Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
qualified individuals to become members of the Board, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors. Moreover, the committee will
ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings.
Details of the attendance of each director is listed under the
section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report.

The terms of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on the
respective websites of the HKEX and the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
June 2005 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules, and currently consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Hui Yat On and
Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles. The Remuneration Committee is
mainly responsible for the determination of the specific
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management
(including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments), making recommendations to the Board on the
matters relating to the Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management, and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings
to discuss remuneration-related matters, review of remuneration
packages of executive director and INEDs. No Directors was
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration at the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the attendance of each
director is listed under the section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on
the respective websites of the HKEX and the Company.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD AND WORKFORCE
The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age (eighteen years old or
above), cultural and educational background, qualification,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Company value gender diversity, and the Board targets to
appoint at least a director of a different gender no later than 31
December 2024 and the Board will consider amending the
Board diversity policy to include appointment of at least a
director of a different gender so that the potential successors to
the board can achieve gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Board diversity policy to ensure the effectiveness of the Board
diversity policy. On 12 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy, and considered that the said policies were
appropriate and effective. Further, it reviewed biographies of the
Directors, assessed the continued independence of each INED
and recommended Mr. Hui Yat On, Mr. Chiu Tak Wai and Dr.
Lau Kin Shing, Charles (“Retiring Directors”) to the Board for
considering their re-election at the forthcoming AGM based on
the Articles of Association of the Company, Nomination Policy
and the Board Diversity Policy.
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The Nomination Committee believed that the Retiring Directors
will continue to contribute to the Board with their skills,
experience and knowledge. It also noted that none of the INED
of the Company is a long serving INED.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. The employee gender
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2023 is 50:50. The Group
when hiring employees considers a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, qualification, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service, and the Group will make
sure achieving gender diversity across the workforce.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of
such auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and
accounts of the Group; and overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. During the year
under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, RSM Hong Kong, is set out below:
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Fee paid/payable

e ENEAR
Audit services ZE R 0/373
Non-audit services IEAZ B TS 115/115

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
Secretary has duly complied with the relevant professional
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted on by a show of hands.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company commits to place shareholders’ interests as top
priority and protect their rights as provided in the Articles.
Shareholders can visit the Company’s website (www.cflg.com.hk) to
gain access to the Company’s up-to-date information. They are
entitled to be given due notice to attend all the general meetings of
the Company, vote all the resolutions (except for those which
shareholders may have conflict of interest and are required to
abstain from voting) and raise questions to the management on the
Group’s status and development plans.

Shareholders as duly registered holders of the ordinary shares of
the Company (“Members”) are also entitled to requisition to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
the Articles. Details of the requirements and procedures are as
follows:

()  Any one or more Members holding not less than one tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company may send a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
to convene a general meeting;

(i) The requisition must be duly signed by the requisitionist,
specifying the requisitionist’s name, contact details and the
number of ordinary shares of the Company that the
requisitionist is holding and the matters proposed to be
discussed and transacted in the general meeting. The
requisition must be deposited at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 11/F., Wui Tat Centre,
55 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong;

(i) The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming
that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will
proceed with the necessary procedures including the
convening of a general meeting; and

(ivy The general meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of the requisition.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
general meeting, the requisitionist himself may convene a general
meeting in the same manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
shareholders so that they can exercise their rights in an informed
manner. Information about the Company is disseminated to the
shareholders through:

()  delivery of interim and annual results and reports to all
shareholders;

(i) publication of announcements on interim and annual results
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange,
and issuance of other announcements and shareholders’
circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

(i) the general meeting of the Company is an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders. As such, the Board members attended the
2023 annual general meeting and other extraordinary
general meetings during the year to provide shareholders
with opportunities to understand the latest development of
the Group and raise questions.

The 2023 annual general meeting was held on 14 April 2023.
Details of the attendance of each director is listed under the
section “MEETINGS” in this Corporate Governance Report.

Pursuant to Rule 2.07A of the Listing Rules and the articles of
association of the Company, the Company will disseminate the
future corporate communications of the Company to its
Shareholders electronically and only send corporate
communications in printed form to the Shareholders upon
request. In this connection, the following arrangements had
already come into effect on 31 December 2023.
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ARRANGEMENTS

1.

Actionable Corporate Communications

The Company will send the Actionable Corporate
Communications to Shareholders individually in electronic
form by email. If the Company does not possess the email
address of a Shareholder or the email address provided is
not functional, the Company will send the Actionable
Corporate Communication in printed form together with a
request form for soliciting the Shareholder’s functional email
address to facilitate electronic dissemination of Actionable
Corporate Communications in the future.

Corporate Communications

The Company will make the Corporate Communications
available on its website (www.cflg.com.hk) and the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk).

A notice of publication of the Website Version of Corporate
Communications, in both English and Chinese, will be sent
by the Company to Shareholders by email or by post (only
if the Company does not possess the functional email
address of a Shareholder) on the publication date of the
Corporate Communications.

]
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MEETINGS
The Board meets on a regular and on an ad hoc basis, as
required by business needs. The attendance of each Director at
the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the
following table:

23

EEeTHRREBAE TRBITEE -
REENEE_TS-_=F+=-RA=+—
HEFELHFEES SR L8822 H
MR AEHNBERENTEK

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee committee committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
£ ) Re
ESZ88E 2 ZEgE8E 2 £Ee8E 2 ZEgE3d S V-1
Name of Directors Attendance/Number of meetings
Espg HERE/EERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri EELE 8/8 N/A T @R 1 1 17
Mr. Chiu Tak Wai' BERLA 2/2 N/A i N/A i N/A R N/A i@
Independent Non-executive Director BV H77EZ
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin? MG A2 6/6 212 17 17 1/1
Mr. Hui Yat On i pine 8/8 3/3 2/2 2/2 1N
Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom R4 8/8 3/3 212 212 11
Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles® Sl Le 2/2 11 17 11 N/A T A

1. Mr. Chiu Tak Wai was appointed on 11 September 2023.

2. Mr. Lam Wai Tsin resigned on 11 September 2023.
3. Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles was appointed on 11 September 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group’s accounts for each financial period and to ensure that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Board
also ensures the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
confirm that they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness at least annually.

As a part of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established by the Group to ensure that assets are
safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial
and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed.
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The Board had performed annual review on the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
including but not limited to the Group’s ability to cope with its
business transformation and changing external environment; the
scope and quality of management’s review on risk management
and internal control systems; result of internal audit work; the
extent and frequency of communication with the Board in relation
to result of risk and internal control review; significant failures or
weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status
of compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems in place
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are effective and adequate.

However, the risk management and internal control systems can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The operating
units of the Group, as a first line of defence, identify, evaluate,
mitigate and monitor the risks, and report such risk management
activities to the Group’s management on a regularly basis. The
Group’s management, as the second line of defence, provides
support to the operating units and ensure that the significant
risks are properly managed and within the acceptable range and
report the situation to the Board at each regularly scheduled
meeting. The Board, as the final line of defence, conducts an
annual review of the overall effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business. It was decided
that the Board would be directly responsible for internal control
of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The situation will be
reviewed from time to time.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and discussed the risk
management and internal control systems and no material
internal control failings, weaknesses or deficiencies have been
identified during the course of the review.

Based on the above, the Board were not aware of any areas of
concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations and considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be generally
effective and adequate including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of
the accounting, internal control and financial reporting functions.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Group has formulated its guidelines, with an aim
to ensure that the insiders abide by the confidentiality
requirement and fulfill the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted a Whistleblowing Policy on 12 December 2023. It
provides employees and the relevant third parties who deal with
the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with
guidance and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the designated person.
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An email account (internalaudit@cflg.com.hk) has been set up for
this purpose. All reported matters will be investigated
independently and, in the meantime, all information received from
a whistleblower and its identity will be kept confidential.

The Board and the Audit Committee will regularly review the
Whistleblowing Policy and mechanism to improve its
effectiveness.

ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG
Code, the Board adopted an Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption
Policy on 12 December 2023. It outlines guidelines and the
minimum standards of conducts, all applicable laws and
regulations in relation to the anti-corruption and anti-bribery, the
responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group
defend against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably
suspected case of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof,
to the management or through an appropriate reporting channel.
The Group would not tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption
among all employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary
capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing with
third parties.

The Board and the Audit Committee will review the Anti-Fraud
and Anti-Corruption Policy and mechanism periodically to ensure
its effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to
the prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all
forms of fraud and corruption.
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China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”), with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is pleased to demonstrate
its commitment to sustainable development. The Group prepared
the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“ESG Report”) and aims to disclose the overall policies, practice,
commitments and strategies on the sustainable development of
the Group during the reporting period which covers the period
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (“Reporting Period”).

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The Group has prepared the ESG Report in accordance to the

following reporting principles stated in the ESG Reporting Guide.

- Materiality: The Group communicates with our major
stakeholder groups on a regular basis to identify and
assess ESG-related issues that matter most from
stakeholders’ perspectives. Key ESG issues identified
through stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment.

—  Quantitative: Quantitative information/KPI presented in this
ESG Report is accompanied by narrative, explanation and
comparison wherever applicable.

- Balance: The ESG Report aims to disclose data in an
objective way, which aims to provide stakeholders with a
balance overview of the Group’s overall ESG performance.

—  Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the Group adopts
consistent methodologies and retrieves social and
environmental KPIs from the Group’s internal record
system. The scope of reporting and KPIs are consistent
with those of the previous report to allow meaningful
comparison over time.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group understands that sustainability is particularly
important to the long-term development of the Group, the
society as well as our next generation. The Group is committed
to create a business that contributes to global efforts in
environmental care and will introduce various environmental
protection and social welfare activities in order to foster the
sustainability development of the society.

BOARD STATEMENT ON ESG GOVERNANCE
The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is
committed to incorporating the ESG mindset into business
operations. The Board accepts full responsibility for the
sustainability of the Group, including formulating strategies,
overseeing the Group’s ESG related risks and opportunities, and
approving the ESG Report. The Board is also required to keep
abreast of and comply with the latest regulatory requirements
before the approval of the ESG Report.

The Board believes that the management of ESG-related risks
and opportunities is essential to the Group’s efficient and
effective operation. The risk management and internal control
systems assure accuracy, reliability and the timeliness of the data
presented and sustainable development measures. The Board
will also regularly review the implementation effectiveness of the
systems and whether they cover major control measures on
material ESG issues.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

This ESG Report focuses on the environmental and social
performance of the Group’s operation in Hong Kong.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group endeavours to create sustainable growth and
long-term value for its stakeholders, who comprise the Group’s
employees, investors and the wider community. The Group
continues to interact with its stakeholders on an ongoing basis in
order to understand their views and collect their feedback. The
Group has also established effective communication channels
with its stakeholders through its company website, annual
general meeting and staff meetings. The opinions of stakeholders
are vastly beneficial to formulating and implementing sustainable
development strategies which enables the Group to improve its
ESG performance. If you have any opinions or suggestions,
please do not hesitate to contact us by mail to 11/F., Wai Tat
Centre, 55 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are
important to the business of the Group. During the Report
Period, the Company undertook its annual materiality
assessment exercise. The objective of materiality assessment is
to identify ESG topics that are material and relevant to the
Group’s operation. This involved conducting interviews and/or
surveys with internal and external stakeholders to identify the
most significant environmental and social impacts on its
business. To identify potential material topics for disclosure in the
ESG Report, we took reference to the ESG Reporting and set
possible topics for assessment. According to the results of the
materiality assessment, the items below demonstrated the ESG
topics with high materiality to the Group, including:

Employee welfare

° Inclusion and equal opportunities

° Talent attraction and retention

e QOccupational health and safety

° Preventing child and forced labour
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Supply chain management
° Economic value generated
e  Corporate governance

° Anti-corruption

o Community investment

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner through its office management and daily
operation. The Group adheres to the principle of recycling and
reducing, and implement green office practices to minimise the
impact of businesses on the environment.

Below practices are being implemented by the Group for energy
saving measure:

()  double-sided printing and copying, promoting using
recycled paper and reducing energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance;

(i) maintain the temperature at 25.5°C, an optimal temperature
for comfort and energy savings;

@iy staff is recommended to switch off the lights and air
conditioning in the meeting room when it is not in use;

(iv)  widespread adoption of multi-function photocopiers (with
printing, scanning and fax functions); and

(v) promote paperless environment by encouraging the use of
soft and electronic copy for the document instead of hard

copy.

Being an investment company, the Group is also aware of the
investment decisions and its potential impact to the environment.
Should the opportunity arise, the Group would consider the risk
of the projects and return dynamics as well as the positive
environmental effects it will have.
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Emission

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is committed to
protecting natural resources and the global environment. Our
commitment to emission reduction, energy and resources
conservation encompasses every aspect of the Group’s
operation, and the Group has complied with laws and regulation
related to environmental protection. In light of the Group’s
business nature, the operation of the Group does not generate
air, water or land pollutions or raise any significant environmental
issues.

Electricity consumed by the Group in principle place of business
is supplied by The Hongkong Electric Company, Limited. The
electricity consumption by the Group was approximately 6,900
kWh. The Group keeps the consumption of electricity at a
minimum level and the Group believes that the Group consumes
energy efficiently.

Since the Group’s business does not involve manufacturing
activities, solid waste is mainly generated in daily office
operations without generation of hazardous waste. The Group
encourages employees to go paperless as much as possible by
limiting print outs as well as communicating via e-mail as
opposed to fax. Employees are also encouraged to reuse paper
and conserve paper usage by printing double-sided to the extent
practicable. During the year, the Group used a total of
approximately 160,000 pieces of paper in its normal business
operations of which approximately 120,000 pieces of paper were
attributable to the printing of the financial statements and
materials related to general meetings distributed to shareholders
of the Company.

Climate Change

Global warming has been one of the utmost concerned issues in
recent years, which might indue extreme weather conditions
such as storms, flooding and earthquakes, etc.

During the reporting period, the Group has not been seriously
affected by the extreme weather conditions as the Group
adopted various emergency plans to prevent the disruption of
the operation such as working arrangement in black rainstorm
warning and/or typhoon signal 8 situation.
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Even though the Group expected that potential extreme weather
condition, sustained high temperature do not have a material
impact on the Group’s operations, the Group will continue to
monitor the climate-related risks and implement relevant
measures to minimize the potential impact of climate change.

Regulatory Compliance

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Use of Resources

The Group has undertaken various resources saving measures
to demonstrate the efforts in efficient use of resources in the
daily operations. Employees are encouraged to optimize
resources to help the Group to minimise the impact on the
environment and natural resources e.g. use of public
transportation. Although non-significant amounts of water is
consumed through the business activities, the Group also
encourages water saving by driving water-saving habits and
posting green messages in the workplace to remind the
employees to use water effectively.

The Environmental and Natural Resources

Since the Group core operations are confined to the office
environment, the impact of the Group on the environment and
natural resources is not significant. It is mainly attributed to the
use of electricity, water and papers in the office. During the year,
the Group set a number of measures to reduce the use of
resources (refers to above sections “Environmental Protection”
and “Emission” for details). In order to have further reductions on
the environmental impact and use of natural resources, the
Group will continue to make assessment and minimise the
environmental impact.
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SOCIAL

Employment

The success of our business has been, and will continue to be,
heavily dependent upon the continuing service of our employees.
The Group provides competitive remuneration, implements a
sound performance appraisal, advocates ethics and human
rights at the workplace.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group has 2 (2022: 2) employees
in offices located in Hong Kong. The Group strictly complies with
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Employee’s
Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282), the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) in Hong Kong:

1. The Group prohibits the employment of child, forced or
compulsory labour in any of our operations;

2. Wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made
in accordance with minimum wage or above (if any);

3. Holidays and statutory paid leaves are compliant respective
Labour Law or Regulations; and

4. The Group is also dedicated to implementing equal
opportunity employment practices by maintaining a diverse
workforce that includes age, gender, family status, sexual
orientation, disability, ethnicity and religion, which are in
compliance with the requirements of the legislation on
anti-discrimination in Hong Kong, including Sex
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487), Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527) and Race
Discrimination. Ordinance (Cap. 602).
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no #HE-_ZE-_=F+_-_A=+—HILFE -
non-compliance or notification from governmental authorities for ZARE B EZ RN » MEWD BT S
contravention of any of the employment practices referred to B3 E B EE K EiltEREBIEHH
above. A

BIER - Fik - BREZKHEE HH

The employee compositions by gender, age, employment type

and geographical region were as follows:

BEAKIT :

Number of
employees Percentage of
as at employees as at
Employee Structure 31 December 2023 31 December 2023
N-TE—= N-TE—=
+=A=+-—H +=A=+-—H
EBE&EE HEE A WiEE LB
Total number of employees 2 100.0%
EEAY
By gender Male 1 50.0%
=1 Bl B
Female 1 50.0%
g
By age Aged 31-40 1 50.0%
RER 31ZE405%
Aged 41-50 1 50.0%
A1E508%
By employment type General Staff 1 50.0%
RERER —®ET
Senior Management 1 50.0%
=SREBAR
By geographical region Hong Kong 2 100.0%
BithE BB
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The following table sets for the turnover rates of the Group’s
employees for the Reporting Period:

TREINBEHRAEEREZREK
P

Number of
employees
Summary of Employee Data resigned in 2023 Turnover rates
—Eo=FBR
EEHEBEHE HES A WKL *E
By gender Male 1 50.0%
21 Bl B
Female = =
g
By age Aged 31-40 1 50.0%
RER 31E405%
By geographical region Hong Kong 1 50.0%
BRihE BB
Development and Training BEREEI

The Group believes two-way communication is crucial to
employee engagement that drives job satisfaction and high
productivity. The Group has provided a platform for quality
communication between employees and management.
Promotion is executed on a fair and open basis and any form of
discrimination is not tolerated. Competent employees will be
considered for internal promotion in recognition of their efforts
and contribution when there is a job vacancy.

The Group ample resources to staff training and development
with the aim of sustaining a competent and professional staff
force that will contribute to the success of the Group. In 2023,
training sessions were provided to our employees on different
aspects such as technology, internal system, safety and staff
induction.

In additions, a number of staff activities were organised to show
appreciation to employees for their contribution and to enhance
their sense of belonging.
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Statistics in respect of development and training for the Report  ¥REEAN A R E LIEJIHNGET0T ¢
Period is set out below:

Summary of Employee Data Units 2023
BEIHESE B —s—=

Average training hours per employees by gender
BRI S D BB AR B /) T 55 KA

Male hours/employee 5
S ANV ]
Female hours/employee 12
pegid N BB

Average training hours per employees by employee category
RIERBELE D EUIES & T K E

General Staff hours/employee 12
—mRET ANy 3=
Senior Management hours/employee 5
=REEAR N RE

Percentage of employees trained by gender
=MEREI D BB ZIE A E & LA

Male 100%
S
Female 100%
g

Percentage of employees trained by employee category
RZERERISHE BV ES LA

General Staff 100%
—fRBETL

Senior Management 100%
SREEAB

5 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is subject to the health and safety requirements of
Hong Kong including, but not limited to, the Occupational Health
and Safety Ordinance. The Board believes that it is in compliance
with such requirements for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The Group’s liability to the employees is covered by insurance,
which are required by law to take out. The Board further
confirmed that there was no material violation of currently
applicable safety regulations nor were there any material
employee safety issues involving the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, no fines or penalties for
non-compliance of safety laws and regulations were imposed on
the Group.

The Company does not aware of any work-related fatalities
occurred in the past three years including the Reporting Period
and there are zero lost days due to work injury.

Labour Standards

The Group’s employment policies regarding prohibiting child and
forced labour are implemented to ensure the adherence of the
local employment laws and regulations. Before the confirmation
of employment, the Group will require job applicants to provide
valid identity documents to verify that the applicants are lawfully
employable and ensure full compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that prohibit child and forced labour. The Group will
regularly review the employees’ information to ensure there is no
violation of any regulations and policies.

The Group has zero-tolerance in the use of forced labour or child
labour in its business operations. The Group enters into an
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. If the use of forced labour
or child labour is discovered, the Group will terminate the
employment contract and investigate if further action is needed.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Employment Ordinance, Employment of Children Regulations
and other applicable laws and regulations relating to preventing
child or forced labour on the Group in the Report Period. No
non-compliance with the law that resulted in significant fines or
sanctions had been reported in the Report Period.
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During the year, the Group had no non-compliance case
regarding violation of relevant child labour and forced labour
laws.

Lawful Governance

The Group has complied with the applicable employment related
laws and regulations currently in force in Hong Kong (including
but not limited to those relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity diversity, anti-discrimination, other benefits and
welfare), as well as the Group does not employ staffs who are
below 18 years of age. The Group provides such rights and
benefits to the employees which are no less than those required
statutorily. No employees are paid less than the minimum wage
specified by the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Monthly salary payments are made on time
according to respective employment contracts.

Supply Chain Management and Product Responsibility

The Company is an investment company. During the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group mainly engages in investments in
listed and unlisted equity securities. It does not have any major
supplier of products, raw materials or services.

Anti-corruption

With integrity being a core part of the Group’s business ethics,
the Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such
as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the laws
of Hong Kong). To maintain high standards of corporate
governance, the Group fulfills the commitment through abiding
by anti-corruption policies and guidelines, such as acceptance of
gifts and conflicts of interest. To live up to the anti-corruption
commitment, whistleblowing policy is also formulated by the
Group. The employees of the Group are encouraged to report
any suspected misconduct and violation of rules. Investigation
work for whistleblowing reports is handled with strict
confidentiality under all circumstances to preserve anonymity.
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Any employee or third party who wish to report a concern thru
our whistleblowing system should inform the Group’s internal
audit team or the audit committee by sending the Whistleblowing
Report Form with supplementary information, if any, by way of
E-mail or mail. For details, please refer to section
“WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY” in the Corporate Governance
Report.

To prevent corruption in the Group, the Group delivers the
anti-corruption policy of the Group to our staff when they are
employed. On-going training are given to our staff and directors
annually in respect of anti-corruption.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had not
been charged for any corruption within the Board, its senior
management and its staff, as well as its subsidiaries and their
employees, during their employment.

The Group, together with the current Board, gives the utmost
priority to regulatory compliance. The Board advocates a high
level of independence so as to make independent judgements.
Therefore, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors. In selecting the Board members, the
Company already considered the experience, knowledge and
background of all four independent non-executive Directors that
can contribute to the diversity and caliber of the Group.

Community Involvement

The Group always endeavours to serve the community and
therefore highly respects its corporate social responsibilities. For
the sake of social betterment, the Group will identify charitable,
non-profit or educational institutions and foundations that share
its beliefs.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang, Henri (“Mr. Lui”), age 50, was appointed
as executive Director of the Company on 9 April 2021. Mr. Lui
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree from University of
Toronto in 1995. Mr. Lui is also a charter holder of Chartered
Financial Analyst since 2001. Mr. Lui has over 27 years of
experiences in the securities and financial industry, serving
various roles as financial analyst, responsible officer in brokerage
house and asset management firms.

Mr. Chiu Tak Wai (“Mr. Chiu”), age 54, was appointed as
executive Director of the Company on 11 September 2023.
Mr. Chiu is currently the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.
He obtained his Bachelor of Social Sciences from University of
Hong Kong in 1993. Mr. Chiu is also a charter holder of
Chartered Financial Analyst since 2001. Mr. Chiu has over 29
years of experiences in the securities and financial industry,
serving various roles as dealer, responsible officer in brokerage
house and asset management firms.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hui Yat On (“Mr. Hui”), aged 64, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 10 June
2021. Mr. Hui graduated from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in business administration in
December 1982. In November 2004, Mr. Hui obtained a
master’s degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Hui has become a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
December 1986. Mr. Hui is a member of the Hong Kong Chiu
Chow Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Hui is currently the
independent non-executive director of ArtGo Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 3313) since 8 June 2016 and was the independent
non-executive director of Enterprise Development Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1808) from 11 January 2021 to 20
September 2021, respectively. Mr. Hui is currently a senior
executive of a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He has previously served as the executive director
and senior executive of several Hong Kong listed companies.
Mr. Hui has three decades of experiences in the field of
corporate finance and financial services.
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Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom (“Mr. Chan”), aged 60, graduated
from The University of Keele in England with major in Economics
and Laws, being admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong. With over
20 years of experience at the top management level of various
institutions and listed companies, Mr. Chan has rich experience
in the brokerage and trading of different financial products
including project financing, corporate mergers and acquisitions,
initial public offering, trading of securities, foreign exchange,
precious metals etc. Mr. Chan is currently the Deputy Chairman
of Success Universe Group. Mr. Chan is currently the
independent non-executive director of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd.
(@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2066) since 22 February 2024. He also devotes
himself to the society, being a member of the 10th—12th Political
Consultative Conference of Jilin Province in China, Economic
advisor to Jilin Provincial Government, Chairman of The Institute
of Securities Dealers in Hong Kong between 2019 and 2022 and
one of the founders of China Bay Area Think Tank Co., Ltd.

Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles (“Dr. Lau”), aged 68, a professional
accountant by training, holds a Doctorate degree in Business
Administration from the Newcastle University of Australia, Master
degree in Information System Management from the National
University of Ireland, and a Bachelor degree in Accounting from
the Curtin University of Technology, Australia. Dr. Lau is a
Chartered Accountant (New Zealand), and also a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of CPA Australia.

Dr. Lau possesses about 30-year executive experiences in
corporate control, financial management, risk management and
internal control gained from international listed companies. He
had held key corporate executive position in various
conglomerates, including vice president of China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited (formerly known as China
Resources Enterprise Limited), deputy head of internal audit for
Hutchison Whampoa Limited, and chief financial officer and
company secretary of Miramar Hotel and Investment Company
Limited. Dr. Lau was also the chief financial officer of the Group,
company secretary and authorised representative of Sitoy Group
Holdings Ltd.
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Dr. Lau has been the independent non-executive director of KOS
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8042) since 1
February 2021, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), Zibuyu Group Ltd (stock code: 2420) since 13
October 2022, a company whose shares are listed on main
board of Stock Exchange. He is also an independent director of
Lingyi Itech (Guangdong) Company Limited (stock code:
002600.S27), since June 2021, a company whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, as well as a
non-executive director of Sitoy Group Holdings Ltd (stock code:
1023) since 1 August 2021, a company whose shares are listed
on main board of Stock Exchange.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERGHREE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is pleased
to submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Financial Leasing Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in short to medium term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of investments
in listed and unlisted securities. Details of the principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set
out on pages 5 to 21 of this annual report. This discussion forms
part of this Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 69.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year.

TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares of
the Company during the year are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 154 of
this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, approximately HK$336,824,000 in the share premium
account and approximately HK$19,444,000 in the reserve arising
from capital reduction of the Company completed on 10
December 2012, is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. The share premium account may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri
Mr. Chiu Tak Wai'

Independent non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin?

Mr. Hui Yat On

Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom

Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles®

1. Mr. Chiu Tak Wai was appointed on 11 September 2023.
2. Mr. Lam Wai Tsin resigned on 11 September 2023.
3. Dr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles was appointed on 11 September 2023.

Pursuant to article 88(1) of the Articles, Mr. Hui Yat On will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
2024 Annual General Meeting (2024 AGM”).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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Pursuant to Article 87(3) of the Articles, Mr. Chiu Tak Wai and Dr.
Lau Kin Shing, Charles will be subject to re-election and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, an annual confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
No Director proposed for re-election at the 2024 AGM has a

service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE GROUP’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
and the Director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares (as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 December 2023, according to the information publicly
disclosed, persons who had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, are

set out below:

FERR
RZEBE-_=F+_A=+—8 KBAQ
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SBIEMEBEHF 2 ELMATE - EARF]
2RO REEROEEERIOAE Z A
THEHINAT -

Approximate

percentage

of the

Company’s

Number of total number

ordinary of issued

Name of shareholders Type of interests Position shares held shares

EA AR

FiFEER CERTROEH

BEERE A 1 =5 8 5l ¥4 8B RS ER

Mr. Lam Shu Chung (“Mr. Lam”) Beneficial owner Long 46,203,360 26.64%
RIS ST A ([MRSE &) EnEAA e

Ms. Choi Hing Lin Lori Interest of spouse Long 46,203,360 26.64%

(“Ms. Choi”) (Note 1)

BHEELLT ([HEt])) (M) ERE#ER e

Like Capital Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner Long 12,778,287 7.37%
BEEARGRLGF (H5E2) EnEA A HE

Ethnocentric Investment Limited Interest in a controlled  Long 12,778,287 7.37%

(Note 2) (Fif3¥2) corporation

g VNI E HE

Capital VC Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled  Long 12,778,287 7.37%

corporation
B#EIRABR A A (FFE2) REH AR s oA
Note: MisE -

1. Ms. Choi is the spouse of Mr. Lam. Accordingly, Ms. Choi is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the shares in which Mr. Lam is interested in for

the purpose of the SFO.

2. Like Capital Limited is a private company directly wholly owned by
Ethnocentric Investment Limited. Ethnocentric Investment Limited is a
private company directly wholly owned by Capital VC Limited, which is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2324).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has paid HK$400,000 as
investment management fee to Avia Asset Management Limited,
the investment manager of the Company for the provision of
investment management services to the Company. The above
transaction constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules.

During the year, Supreme China Securities Limited, Interactive
Brokers Hong Kong Limited and Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited, the custodians (collectively the
“Custodians”) of the Company provided custody services in
relation to the securities and cash which the Company may from
time to time deposit with the Custodians. The fees payable by
the Company to the Custodians for the services constitutes de
minimis continuing connected transaction which is exempted
from reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76 (1) of the
Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with the
requirements of the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hui
Yat On (as the chairman), Mr. Chan Pak Lam, Tom and Dr. Lau
Kin Shing, Charles.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong.

RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offers itself for
re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the 2024 AGM
for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Lui Cheuk Hang Henri

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 February 2024

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123
F+85225987230

www.rsmhk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 69 to 153, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong

RSM

EREERMEHR
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E&E +8522598 5123
BH +85225987230

www.rsmhk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7 i e o

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

3 57 % B e A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

23 February 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 7 TR A B AL fib 2 i WAL A

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

2023 2022
—E=-= —F-—
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue A 8 758 155
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ
Wias F 58 27(a) - 1
Net loss on financial assets at fair BREBEREAFEFE
value through profit or loss O EEBIBFRE (4,951) (16,044)
Other income H g A 9 22 -
(4,171) (15,888)
Administrative expenses THHAX (3,781) (4,593)
Loss from operations REEE (7,952) (20,481)
Finance costs BF TS R AN 10 (15) (21)
Loss before tax MRV RIEE (7,967) (20,502)
Income tax expense FrigfiF = 11 - —
Loss for the year attributable to KAREEAELREE
owners of the Company BB 12 (7,967) (20,502)
Other comprehensive income for FEH it 2 K%
the year, net of tax HIBRBEE — —
Total comprehensive income for XA TEEABEEE
the year attributable to owners 2HKEHATE
of the Company (7,967) (20,502)

(Re-presented)

(L&)

Loss per share BRESE 16
Basic (HK cents per share) EAR (FRBAL) 4.40 11.32
Diluted (HK cents per share) B (R8I 4.40 1132

R R A R A 50
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

#n 5 W5 IR Ol 3%
At 31 December 2023
RZT_=F+=-—A=+—H

2023 2022
—=E—-= —_EF-—
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BT 7E FET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 17 - —
Right-of-use asset ERAEEE 18 - —
Refundable rental deposit REHEEZRS 21 60 60
60 60
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value through  BiBIESIE A FEE
profit or loss LB EE 20 58,951 45913
Deposits and prepayments e RIEEIRIR 21 446 25
Bank and cash balances RITRIAEEH 1,179 22,933
60,576 68,871
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals fEsTE 373 433
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 93 268
466 701
Net current assets REEEFEE 60,110 68,170
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERABERE 60,170 68,230
Non-current liabilities kRBEEB
Lease liabilities HEBRE 22 - 93
NET ASSETS EEZEE 60,170 68,137
China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R I

At 31 December 2023
RZTZ=F+=—A=+—H

2023 2022
—E_-= —F-—
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET AT
Capital and reserves attributable XA TEEAEEER
to owners of the Company K i#E
Share capital &N 23 6,938 6,938
Reserves 1 25 53,232 61,199
TOTAL EQUITY ERE 60,170 68,137
(Re-presented)
(FeET)
Net asset value per share BREEFE
(HK cents per share) (B ER) 26 33.23 37.63

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February 2024 and MR-ZE_MF - -+ =HAKEEFSH

are signed on its behalf by: ENRBUATESRREE
Lui Cheuk Hang Henri Chiu Tak Wai

melE HEE

Executive Director Executive Director

HITEFE HITEE

B < A TR A B AR
ZERICESER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A 7 BE 43 52 B 3¢

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

Capital
Share Share reduction Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total equity
RA ROGEE  BXHARSE ZitFR s
(note 23) (note 25(]) (note 25(i)
(K&F23) (KizE250) (Ksks(i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i i T T i
At 1 January 2022 WZE-—%-F—H 46,253 299,332 19,444 (318,507) 46,522
Capital reduction (note 23(a) B A HI (B 23(a)) (43,940) S S 43,940 —
Issue of shares on Right lssue XAk 3478 47 (B 723(c))

(note 23(c) 4,605 39,315 - 43,940
Share issuance expenses ROETRAX = (1,823) = = (1,829)
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2AMALE

for the year - — — (20,502) (20,502)
Changes of equity for the year EREZEE (39,315) 37,492 = 23,438 21,615
At 31 December 2022and ~ RZEZ_F+-AZ1-H

1 January 2023 k_Z-=%-A-H 6,938 336,824 19,444 (295,069) 68,137
Total comprehensive income  FR2ERALE

for the year - - — (7,967) (7,967)
Changes of equity for the year FRERE - - - (7,967) (7.967)
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZE+-A=1-H 6,938 336,824 19,444 (303,036) 60,170

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Annual Report 2023




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i Bl

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

2023 2022
—E-=F T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FERx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHEASRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax PR AIEE (7,967) (20,502)
Adjustments for: HATIEEELRAE
Depreciation of property, plant and M BMELREEBINE
equipment 3 9
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FCHAEEEZHE — 261
Finance costs BE KA 15 21
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries, net HENRB AR W FRE 27() - (1)
Net loss on financial assets at fair value ~ BREHFEAFEAFEZ
through profit or loss MBEEBETE 4,951 16,044
Impairment loss on arising from: B 55| 2 REEE
— Property, plant and equipment — ¥ BELRE 14 29
— Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE = 353
Operating loss before working capital LEESHPHLEEBE
changes (2,984) (3,780)
Purchases of financial assets at fair BEEBBEEATE
value through profit or loss ARG EE (117,677) (93,746)
Proceeds from disposals of financial HEZRBRRATE
assets at fair value through profit or FEIUBEELZ
loss PG HIE 99,688 57,553
Refundable rental deposit ROAEES - 2
Deposits and prepayments Ee RIEHRIE - (25)
Cash in margin account of brokerage SAREeRPEE
firms - 1,045
Accruals FEETEA (60) (1)
Cash used in operations REMARE (21,033) (38,958)
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBHME (15) (21)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHMARES FHE (21,048) (38,979)

L AR A R 73
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

/N Y2 Bl
GaBEeRER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-=F T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B &x FERx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETZHHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEVE BELRE
equipment (17) (21)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMARSFHE (17) (21)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares on Right iR K317/ (9 2 FT15 5038
Issue - 43,940
Share issue expenses paid ERRHETHX (421) (1,823)
Principal elements of lease payments MENREE D (268) (264)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEE® (FTA)/FERe
financing activities FEE (689) 41,853
NET CHANGES INCASHAND CASH B4 RESZEHERSH
EQUIVALENTS R (21,754) 2,853
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT R—B—-HzHERkERE
1 JANUARY Z@EER 22,933 20,080
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RTZBE=1+t—HzBE&R
31 DECEMBER Be%EEA 1,179 22,933
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBEEEEE M
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S M 1,179 22,933

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Financial Leasing Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(2007 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands. The address of its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is 11/F., Wui Tat
Centre, 55 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in short to medium
term capital appreciation by investing in a diversified
portfolio of investments on a general perspective. The
principal activities of its subsidiary is set out in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to

Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
- Pillar Two Model
Rules — Amendments
to HKAS 12

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” for the first time in the current
year. HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” is
amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. R ITREIETTE B

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BimEED (E)
STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (@) ERAFIRKEITEBMER

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies” (Continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not all
accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must
not obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-
step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice
Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction” from 1 January 2023. The
amendments narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption to exclude transactions that
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences
—e.g. leases.

Prior to the adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12, the
Group applied the initial recognition exemption under
paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 for leasing
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences, and therefore no deferred tax
has been recognised for temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at initial
recognition, and also over the lease terms under
paragraph 22(c) of HKAS 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

3.

PRANFTE] RIS &R

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HREER (F)
STANDARDS (Continued)
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) ERAHFITIRLEITEBMER

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction” (Continued)

The Group has applied the transitional provisions
under paragraphs 98K and 98L of Amendments to
HKAS 12 to leasing transactions that occur on or after
the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented and also, at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented by:

()  Recognising a deferred tax asset to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised, and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities; and

(i)  Recognising the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings (or
other component of equity, as appropriate) at
that date.

Based on management’s assessment, there was
immaterial impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2022, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023, because the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised as a
result of the adoption of Amendment of HKAS 12
qualify for offset under paragraph 74 of HKAS 12.
There was also immaterial impact on the opening
retained profits as at 1 January 2022 as a result of the
change. The change does not impact the overall
deferred tax balances presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position as the related deferred
tax balances qualify for offset under HKAS 12.

528 ()
EREBEERE125 (5
IR ERE-RGEECEE
REBERMZELZERE|I ¥
& (|
REBEEBUTHABES
S ERF125 (BETK)
98K 98LEZ IR T 2 8 1§ X g
AREMZ5 &R HEA
R BUAREMEY &SR
LEER BRI RREECHER
% g

()  FERTREZETS AT HIR E B I
Z R A A BRI 8 A Y
BT ERELEREE
= UHAALEEREE
ENHEAEER A
R N FE ER A B 1 = A R
RELEHEBE &

i) BRVBEARZETE
ERHZARBEF (3
A RS - B
M) BB L BAE
RHYE -

BREEEENTE  ARER
MEB G ERAFE125 (IBF]
RN)MBRZELEHEEE X
BERBRABEHREEBETE
BIZE125R E74ERIBE TN 2 HHE
o —_E_—_F— A —
H Z= =i e 5 = —
AT -_=F+=-A=1+—
AZHGelBRARITEER
B -ZEBHPH _T - —F—
A—BZHREB &N EE
EEAFE - AR ABEER
HEBRTEB BT ERIE12
FHATEHEER Btz e
P T EFEGETBRAR
FEINNEERELEHRIELER

L AR A R A g

ZERICESER



80

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model
Rules”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 12
“International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules” for
the first time in the current year. HKAS 12 is amended
to add the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
that are related to tax law enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development (the “Pillar Two
legislation”). The amendments require that entities
apply the amendments immediately upon issuance
and retrospectively. The amendments also require that
entities to disclose separately its current tax expense/
income related to Pillar Two income taxes in periods
which the Pillar Two legislation is in effect, and the
qualitative and quantitative information about its
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in
which the Pillar Two legislation is enacted or
substantially enacted but not yet in effect in annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

RN R R ERY
32 A ()

(a) ERHTREETEBYBER

(Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong

The Company and its subsidiary are operating in Hong
Kong which are obliged to pay LSP to employees
under certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes mandatory MPF contributions to the trustee
who administers the assets held in a trust solely for
the retirement benefits of each individual employee.
Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s accrued
retirement benefits derived from employers’ MPF
contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government of
the HKSAR gazetted the Employment and Retirement
Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment
Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions to offset severance payment and LSP
(the “Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect
on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition,
under the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of employment) is
used to calculate the portion of LSP in respect of the
employment period before the Transition Date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance
for the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and
the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this,
the Group has implemented the guidance published
by the HKICPA in connection with the LSP obligation
retrospectively so as to provide more reliable and
more relevant information about the effects of the
offsetting mechanism and the Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising
from employer MPF contributions that have been
vested with the employee and which could be used to
offset the employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed
contribution by the employee towards the LSP.
Historically, the Group has been applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 to account
for the deemed employee contributions as a reduction
of the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)
(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

RN R R ERY
32 A ()

(a) ERHTREETEBYBER

(Continued)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) - Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (Continued)

Based on the HKICPA’s guidance, as a result of the
Abolition, these contributions are no longer considered
“linked solely to the employee’s service in that period”
since the mandatory employer MPF contributions after
the Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-
transition LSP obligation. Therefore, it would not be
appropriate to view the contributions as “independent
of the number of years of service” and the practical
expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer
applicable. Instead, these deemed contributions
should be attributed to periods of service in the same
manner as the gross LSP benefit applying paragraph
93(a) of HKAS 19.

Based on management’s assessment, the change has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BRI REIETTE B
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EZAER| (EF)

STANDARDS (Continued)
(b) Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b)

The Group has not applied any new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2023. These new and revised HKFRSs include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.
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Effective

for accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTBERZ#E
FRmNE B EN

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

FEEEUFIR (BFTA)— BENBRRRB NIRRT

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

1 January 2024

—E-_pFE—H—H

1 January 2024

BB GHEREIR (BRI ARN)— WHERENFERDEE —E_NE—-H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024
ERVBHRELELE169E (BRI RN)— EREONEERE —E_NE—-H—H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2024
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
ERREERT (KEF) UBHRERIF—RERAHREBEREERER —ET_NFE—-—H—H

R E) EHIE KA 0 #E

Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability
BR G ERFE215 (BFTAR)— RZ AT L1t

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
EEMBHRELENFE105% L EEGTLERFE285 (BRI K)
— REEHEBERSERLEZHANEELHEITE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 T 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all amendments to HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect
the entity’s returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(b)

0]

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

° Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

e All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EASTHBEER (E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rate is 25%.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EASTHBEER (E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives and the lease terms.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification. The only exceptions
are any rent concessions which arose as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16. In such cases, the Group took advantage
of the practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A of
HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EASTHBEER (E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Recognition and derecognition of financial () BRARBUEERHMKEIA (&)
instruments (Continued)
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when EREEWRDEEREZEL
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset BAEER ERVBKEE
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and NEERER BRI RER
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of MEOREZET S —BEBRK X
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither SESTEREERZMEE
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and E o mMAKEERTEET TR
rewards of ownership and continues to control the BB E 2 RXEH Rk &E
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained W BEEESIEEZEEE -
interest in the asset and an associated liability for AIREBRAENEHBEERN
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains REEE UAREAIEFE
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of NMHEBEERE - WAKE
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to REEBEVBEERERZ
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a BAREB S B K Bl - AIARE
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. EEmAEHEVBEE B

Bt E WER 2 FR {5 RIB TR —
BEHEMER -

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and REBCMBAGBERAEH
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, ZE AR - BUSE W
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the BUBER - BUEER 2B &
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised ERAENEE N REMRE (B
and the consideration paid and payable, including any REEEZEMIFEREEESR
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is FiEEaE) 228N iEaE
recognised in profit or loss. R o

() Financial assets (n HMBEE

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(f)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
the amortised cost measurement category, if the
investment is held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest
method.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective.
Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to accumulated losses. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in
profit or loss as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4., EASTHBEER (E)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(g) Receivables (9) EWFHE
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an JE W SRIB R AN & B MR A UK
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to B2 B IR T LARER -
receive consideration is unconditional if only the WERREZEFERBRRE
passage of time is required before payment of that A NEEIE- N 3 Dkt
consideration is due. BT B EGY -
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the JE WK TE $2 48 S A R A BB
effective interest method less allowance for credit KERBEEEEREI K-
losses.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents (h)y RerBEELEEER
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank RekReFEEE BERT
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other RFERE HRITEEMS
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid BB EE ES A REIR
investments that are readily convertible into known HoomEtsR  HREBRKE
amounts of cash and which are subject to an MeBHWRE  AERKER
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been AR =8 A A S R R
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash BEZHRARNRE -Hak
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit ReFEEBELTEHREAREE
losses (“ECL”). HEEEE ([FEREEEE]) -

() Financial liabilities and equity instruments (i) MEEEREZMEIA

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

@)

(k)

0

Payables

Payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries and
wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of
HK$1,500 per employee.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be
offsetted as a deemed employee contribution
towards the LSP obligation in term of HKAS 19
paragraph 93(a) and it is measured on a net
basis. The estimated amount of future benefit is
determined after deducting the negative service
cost arising from the accrued benefits derived
from the Group’s MPF contributions that have
been vested with employees, which are deemed
to be contributions from the relevant employees.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued) (o)

4. EXSTHHBEESR (&)

PR (%)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. The Group recognises a
deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EXSFBER (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(p) Impairment of non-financial assets P) FBBEERE
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are FUBEELRABEBRERS
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of AR EELBERETR
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is WEEERME  AEARAXE
written down as an expense through the consolidated wireBEan kHEMEE KSR
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive WORE R AIE S RE - 7]
income to its estimated recoverable amount. The WEeEmENEEET 6
recoverable amount is determined for an individual MEETBMEARKIZEE LB
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows VREMEENEEMAE 2R
that are largely independent of those from other assets emA AR EeEREE
or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable FIBZIREeEELESNEBE -7
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit el EZRENEEXREE
(“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. Recoverable ABEN 2 EABEREAFER
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value HEXAMER 2BSEFE ©
less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the
CGU.
Value in use is the present value of the estimated FREBEREE BeELEE
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values st ARKRBEEREZHE -
are computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect REERRMEESHEEBRRLE
the time value of money and the risks specific to the E/S2 ReELEM(BER
asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured. B) 2% B Rz Ta R X

E

Impairment losses for CGU are allocated pro rata ReELEBARERBEIRLA
amongst the assets of the CGU. Subsequent FRSEXENEERETS
increases in the recoverable amount caused by i o At S mERHIEA
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to WEeREEMESTABRAES
the extent that they reverse the impairment. B ERE -

(@) Impairment of financial assets () MBEERE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
bank and cash balances other receivables. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of
the respective financial instrument.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EREFHE (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(q)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for the financial
instruments when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks
and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.
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HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(q)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EREFHE (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(q)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and

(iiy adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EXSFBER (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) () FHEEREE)
Definition of default EYZTES
The Group considers the following as constituting an AEERR MAREERR

event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EXSFBER (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(q)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

e the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

o it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

e  The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of other receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’
gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

China Financial Leasing Group Limited

Annual Report 2023

(q)

B 5 B RLE ()

B E AR EE ()

. HIEFTIERAREHT
7 HH 35 B 7 R B 4 A
SAMEMETHF B
SA-BTEEEME
% %

o HFHIRALKEMNE
SETHMHEMA K

s BRWBEEZABRTS
PR B 75 IR R T DB 2K

35 B
MEEMBREBSALREE
B 75 IR i B30 B R U B AT A
H(BREBARERKDHE
AWERRF - 308 E eI
RIE - ARAKEBMBEAME
(ABmBBHLEER/E)) QIR
SEBZYHEEME - 2
5 R 75 & 2 1)) AT I e 7R SR LU
RIRRRF 2R NIT/AE
BRESKERER (WER) -
EU B FRIR R NI o

FBRHEEERZTEBRER
BHREEBRENGERENM
R BHOBRXREE (AR #
EENRMNIBRER) MED
R OB K2R e B AL R &
BHOBREREZFMARE
BB RKE  LIRATEIEER
FHEL AR - ERNFEEELD
Reeh HMBEEEMS
DREBEENHREBHZER
A (E



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EXSFBER (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) () FHEEREE)
Measurement and recognition of ECL BRHAGEEERZTERER
(Continued) (&)

The ECL for financial assets is estimated as the RMBEEMS BHEEE
difference between all contractual cash flows that are BURBESAOFENAEED
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and FrEaRNReRERlAEEE
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, HIWBHW AR RE ZHH
discounted at the original effective interest rate. ERETHE  WIEVBRER

AR o
If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a WASKEDRBARS Y
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL —Eem T AKESHEME
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the EEEHSEEEEER
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime - ERRITHREBAZ R
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss TETBFREEHEHRESE
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the B2BY  AIREERRITHR
current reporting date, except for assets for which EHERET_FAEREE
simplified approach was used. BERSECETEEERE (K
FEAGETEZEEIN) °

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in REBEMAESHITANER
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a mRBEWESEE  TiBB
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount EERERYHEREDEETE
through a loss allowance account and does not JERE - M T EREEE IR
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in NEIB BT B EE ZREA
the consolidated statement of financial position. ER

() Provisions and contingent liabilities N BERIAEE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EXSFBER (&)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

(s) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position at
the end of the reporting period are adjusting events
and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

There are no key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period identified, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
m$/\Ej%g$ﬁ%%MjEi

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MKERERE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Price risk (a) E&EBS
The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly REBEFrEFREBERESFKR
through its investment in equity securities. The BERXERBRRAR BEEE
management manages this exposure by maintaining a FiEEE — @R E R & R
portfolio of investments with different risk and return ZIEHEERRERE - &

profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity securities quoted on the Stock
Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2022: 10%) higher/
lower, loss after tax for the year ended 31 December
2023 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$5,895,000 (2022: HK$4,591,000). This is mainly
due to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading

SEZERERAE MEK%EP
REBIFAHRE 2 RAE

AT 8 E DA TR R iﬁi
HIR i e s (EAR R EE E

AR ER EFH T RE10%(=
T _F:10%)  HE_Z
—=F+-A=t—HILFEK
1z BB E R J/i‘bnzﬁ
5,895,000 (=& = =

investments. 4,591,000/ 7T) © Lt JiEZEHRMN
BIEEBRENFEEZHAHC
(b) Credit risk (b) EERB

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and
from its financing activities, including equity
instruments and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

All of the Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance, if any, recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Financial instruments are considered to be low credit
risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. Financial assets at
amortised cost include deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEKRERE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBELREMR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and RNEBMNBE ST EIR
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it LFEHRSESETE  UER
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its I TR S HERCEEE
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. EHIZRHESEE o
The maturity analysis based on contractual BEASBEFTEMBEEZ
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative S#RBEIRIVERE 2D EF
financial liabilities is as follows: ek i UNNE
On demand Between
or less than 1and2
1 year years Total
BERF1FR 122 oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TETL FTET
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=5+-A=1—H
Lease liabilities HEBE 93 — 93
Accruals [EETEA 373 - 373
466 = 466
At 31 December 2022 RZZEZZF+-A=+—H
Lease liabilities HEEE 268 93 361
Accruals S ER 433 — 433
701 93 794

Based on the assessment of the directors, despite the
continuous operating loss incurred by the Group over
the years, the liquidity risk encountered by the Group
is minimal considered that the Group will have
sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working
capital after taking into account the ability of the Group
to conduct fund raising activities and the ability to
realise the financial assets at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBEARERE (&)
(Continued)
(d) Categories of financial instruments (d SmEITEAR
2023 2022
—EgE=-= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET
Financial assets: MBEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRBREATETE
ZHBEE :
Mandatorily measured at R Hl B RERIR
FVTPL NEERE 58,951 45,913
Financial assets measured at HE X AAE 2 T B EE
amortised costs 1,241 22,995
Financial liabilities: MEaE:
Financial liabilities at RN E 2 B 7
amortised cost afE 373 433
(e) Fair values (e) A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets NEBMBEELTBEEED
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated BE B 4r & B IS AR &R P

statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

B < AL AR AT R
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(Continued)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

7. AV{EFE (&)

RFEERKE
Fair value measurements using:
EATIBMAEZAFEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
g% -t EZH @t

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TER TER TER
31 December 2023 —E-=f+ZR=t-H
Recurring fair value REMNTLHESE:
measurements:
Financial assets HKEE
Financial assets at FVTPL #@RBREATEITECHEEE
Listed equity securities MR AES 58,951 - - 58,951
31 December 2022 “B--E+ZA=+-H
Recurring fair value REMEDNTLENE:
measurements:
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL #BEZERATENEZHKEE
Listed equity securites MR AES 45,913 - - 45913

o R AR R A 493
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE—

8.

Eo=F+ A=+ —HIEE

REVENUE 8. WA

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: FRERAZWADT

2023 2022
—E=-= T

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAET
Interest income on bank deposits R 1TTE R Z F B UL A 239 5
Interest income from bonds BEH 2 F BIA 46 -
Dividend income A EHA 473 150
758 155

The results arising from the fair value change of financial
assets at FVTPL are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
under the line of “Net loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss”. The gross proceeds from trading of
securities for the year are approximately HK$99,688,000
(2022: HK$57,553,000).

The Group has identified its operating segments and
prepared segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the Group’s executive
director for his decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and review of these
components’ performance.

For both years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group has identified only one segment and the sole
business of this segment is investment in listed securities.
No separate analysis of segment information by business
segment is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets by geographical areas are not presented as
the geographical segments other than Hong Kong are less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of all segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

o.

10.

11.

OTHER INCOME 9. Hflk A

2023 2022
—=E—-= —_EF-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Government subsidies (note) B Bh (B ) 14 -
Rebates B4 8 =
22 -
Note: ff3E -

Being reimbursement for staff cost that employers required to pay for the
additional four weeks’ maternity pay leave under the Amendment
Ordinance.

FINANCE COSTS

RIBIEFTIROINRE - REERIMEINID
EHERINNETRA -

10. B & A

Interest expense on lease liabilites FE&E 2 FlE R

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdictions of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands during the year (2022: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements since the Group has
no assessable profit for the year (2022: Nil).

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

15 21

1. FIEHMAX
FANAEBLBEHNHAEESER
REBEZBEEAEERAMNTRM
H(ZEZZF :#|) -

HRAREFALEERBGEHN (=
T _F 0 E) WUEBFEBENEH
EERAMBHRERAELRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11. TS HEBE X (&)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate is as follows:

PSR R B A BB RIA TR A
MEHBHR 2 RBHERAT

2023 2022
—EgE=-= g
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHExT T
Loss before tax BRELRIE 1R (7,967) (20,502)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax 2 & /& FI 1S FiFi £16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) FFTE A
ZEZF 16.5%) (1,315) (3,382)
Tax effect of income that is not BEARMBRAZRIBZE
taxable (580) (29)
Tax effect of expenses that are not 7~ A] R FI X ~ i T8 &/ £
deductible 50 1,108
Tax effect of other temporary H R ERLRFEER L
differences not recognised M E (3) 3)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERTIEBE 2 THIA
recognised T 1,848 2,306
Income tax expense FriS i 2 - —

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$374,787,000 (2022:
HK$363,587,000) available for offset against future profits
and are subject to the approval of Inland Revenue
Department. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE

—E =+ _A=t+—HULFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLETO 12. XA THEH A FE{L FE &

13.

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY |
The Group’s loss for the year attributable to owners of the RKAPHEEARBGHAEEFEEIE
Company is stated after charging the following: RHBRATRIEEZRRY
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Auditor’s remuneration — audit ZE AN & — = ERTE
services 381 355
Depreciation of property, plantand #1% - MELREZITE
equipment 9
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FFHEEE 2T E 261
Net foreign exchange loss (e 5, B3 18 F 5 7 8
Impairment on arising from: B T35 2 RE :
— Property, plant and equipment W% BERE&E 14 29
- Right-of-use asset —ERAEEE - 353
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 W= - 1
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13. EEEFEX
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances ¥ & - {E4L ML 691 806
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFIFHEI B3R
contributions 31 32
722 838

For the year ended 31 December 2022, COVID-19 related
government grants amounted to HK$48,000 have been
offset in the employee benefits expense.

FE -

A °

o R R e 447
ZRI=ESEH

BE—_ZE-—# - H=s5—H8It
17U T AR R B 48 B BT 4R B
#)48,000/8 T E K H A E B 8 T



118

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Continued)

(a)

Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement plans which are available for eligible
employees in the Hong Kong.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong Kong). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the
MPF Scheme and which may be used by the Group
to reduce the existing level of contributions. There
were also no forfeited contributions available at 31
December 2023 and 2022 under the MPF Scheme
which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.
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RIRETE - IRIFRESFE 2
ME BEKREEHAME
R HREREERZE
B A Z5% @ 1S A B RRWA
PR 730,000/ 7T, ©

REBEE-ZZ-_=FR=_FT=_—
F+-_A=+—HLEFE &
SEYWEE]ANEKRE S H
FOKF w5818 & 5 808 Wt
K NRZE—=ZER-_T-—
F+—_A=+—H xEEI;
2 0] PO R R 2 HE R E S 3R

MR TE & AT BDR UL HEK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13. EE BRI X (&)
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) EEESHFAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during rEEFAREESTMNAL
the year included 3 (2022: 2) directors whose B3R (ZE__F:2%)&
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in E - HH MR 1427
note 14. The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2022: 3) oo T2Rm (ZE =
individuals are set out below: F:3%) AL 2SI AT :
2023 2022
—g-= Tz
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FHET
Basic salaries and allowances & A& K&IEAL 1,470 806
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE FIET B B0
contributions 26 32
1,496 838
The emoluments fell within the following bands: & FATEE -

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 2
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FA-ARELEAEARD
Group to any of the highest paid individuals as an FMALIHMD - ERIMA
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ARERBMA R 2 REXAER
compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil). BRmE(CE_—F:|) -
The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining 2 N FHEAN 7‘:_%‘% —FQ%:?T{
(2022: 3) members of senior management fell within —_F:3%)RREEREBKE
the following band: ZME N FLATEE -

Number of individuals

AH
2023 2022
= 1= Bi=li— —
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2

A R R A 490
ZRI=ESEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEEfI kR

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EE=EM<
The remuneration of every director is set out below: FRESHFHES BT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REARLAZANBAREZ AL RBCHARLBE

Employer’s
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Fees bonus  benefit scheme Total
ETHERKEN
fe RERL g L[ s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn ThEn ThEn ThEn
For the year ended BE-Z-ZE+CR
31 December 2023 Zt-ALEE
Executive Director #irEs
Mr. Chiu Tak Wai (Note () MR 2 ) 147 - - 147
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri (Note (i)) & £ B % £ (5 600 - - 600
47 - - 47
Independent Non-executive Directors B k#1785
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin (Note (i) A (B (i) 84 - - 84
Mr. Hui Yat On (Note (i) - R4 Kk 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Pak Lam (Note (1) B A () 120 - - 120
Dr. Lau Kin Shing Charles (Note (v)) ~ BIBR BT (Fit) 36 - - 36
360 - - 360
1,107 - - 1,107

’I 2 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 1 Y % A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EEEfI Nk #E = (&)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM< (&)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of
a person’s services as a director, whether
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
RERARARENBRARESZ ATRECNIELME
Employer's
contribution to
Discretionary a retirement
Fees bonus benefit scheme Total
EXHRAEN
ik RERL sl it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR AL
For the year ended BE-Z--E+Zf
31 December 2022 ZT-ALEE
Executive Director YrES
Mr. Chiu Wai Lap (Note (vi) REU A (Kakvi) 13 - - 13
Mr. Lui Cheuk Hang Henri (Note (i)) B 2B %4 (B3 590 - - 590
603 - - 603
Independent Non-executive Directors BLFH17EE
Mr. Lam Wai Tsin (Note (i) MRAE R 5 (ki) 120 - - 120
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (Note (vi) FE AR £ (W i) 60 - - 60
Mr. Hui Yat On (Note (i) F-RRE () 120 - - 120
Mr. Chan Pak Lam (Note (v)) B o A (RsE) 60 - - 60
360 - - 360
963 - - 963

*E%Mm%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂjQW
R =R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Appointed on 11 September 2023

(ii) Appointed on 9 April 2021

(iii Resigned on 11 September 2023
(iv)  Appointed on 10 June 2021

(v) Appointed on 30 June 2022

(vi)  Appointed on 11 September 2023

(vi)  Resigned on 7 January 2022
(viii)  Resigned on 30 June 2022

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements and contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’'s connected party had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

15. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend any payment of dividends
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BIREE

Basic loss per share

Subsequent to reporting date, on 20 February 2024, the
Group has completed its rights issue on the basis of one
rights share for every one issued share of the Company.
Upon completion, the number of shares in issue of the
Company stand at 346,897,482.

Therefore, the calculation of basic loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$7,967,000 (2022: HK$20,502,000) and
new number of ordinary shares of 181,050,080 (2022 (re-
presented): 181,050,080) in issue upon completion of rights
issue.

Diluted loss per share

As the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
and the potential ordinary shares of the Company’s share
options would be anti-dilutive for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, diluted loss per share was the
same as the basic loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

BREAXEE

WMEBPER T _WE_A -+
H ANEBEZTKTEREEE —KRAE
NEIEBEITRMDER —RERRYD
MEEEITZHR HRTEXE -
KRB ZEBETRHEE A
346,897,482% °

Hit - RARHEE ABLESRER
EEDERANGBEARLEES
BHAT7,967,0008 T (ZE - —F :
20,502,000 7T) & IR SERK 18 B 2%
TR T E 8% 8 B 181,050,0800%
B - ZF (& &EF)
181,050,0800% ) 51 & -

SREEER
ARARTBBE_E_=FR_Z
T+ A=t BULEFEYE
FHEEHELTBAREBEL=-F
CTEFRZIEZZF A=+ —
BIEFEARARRRIENBELE
BREBREE ALSREEHEHRE
HE T - =FEKR-_FT_—_F+=
A=Z+—RALFENSRELAEIE
MR e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - RERZRE

Furniture
and office
equipment
£87 954
WAERE
HK$’000
FET
Cost KA
At 1 January 2022 N-_E-_—_%F—HF—H 39
Additions NE 21
At 31 December 2022 and RZBE__F+_A=+—HK
1 January 2023 —E-=%—AF—H 60
Additions NE 17
At 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+=-ZA=+—H 77
Accumulated depreciation ZFIE
At 1 January 2022 N-_E-_—_F—HF—H 22
Charge for the year FANEH 9
Impairment losses RIEEE 29
At 31 December 2022 and RZBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8kK
1 January 2023 —E-_=%—AF—H 60
Charge for the year FANEH 3
Impairment losses RIEEE 14
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=-H=+—H 77

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2023

At 31 December 2022

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 T 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FRREE

Leased
properties
HEWME
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2022 NR-E-_—_F—HF—H 85
Additions NE 529
Depreciation e (261)
Impairment losses BIBEEE (353)

At 31 December 2022 and R-ZE-_—_&F#+-_A=+—H
1 January 2023 rF—E-_=%—H—H .
Depreciation e —
Impairment losses BEEE —
At 31 December 2023 RZZE-_=F+=-H=+—H -

Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in note
27(c).

For both years, the Group leases an office for its
operations. Lease contract is entered into for fixed terms of
2 years (2022: 2 years), but may have termination options.
Lease term is negotiated on an individual basis and
contained a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
was enforceable.

FHEEENAR SR 2FBERN
B5E27(c) ©

RMEFE AEBEHEERAEE
KEMg HEAHNIRE (ZF
T oF I 2F)MBEERRETL -
AEERIE - HEHRDZERER -
BEBEETRMGREGEE - RE
TE TH & IR Ko AT Ak A AT R AR 2
FHE ASEEAAOZER
WEEE A 4] 8 Bl AT HAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

19. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 19. RIMIB AR ZIRE
Particulars of the subsidiary as at 31 December 2023 are R-ZEBE-=F+_-A=1+—8B2M
as follows: BARIGEBHMT :
Place of incorporation/
registration and Particular of issued Percentage of ownership/ Principal
Name operation share capital voting power/profit sharing activities
RIS/
BRREERY/
R EEERER ERTRAHE BAE/RER/ENMEEA IERH
Direct Indirect
BE% f
2023 2022 2023 2022
—ECCE S 3 “E-cE “FCC
Income Sky Limited Hong Kong/ 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - - Inactive
Limited liability company
ERERAT B8/BREANT  IREER HEE
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBEBER AT EFEZ
HEEE
2023 2022
—E=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FAET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 2 AT & 2 &8 M E
and United States, at cost TR ARRE S 80,419 73,144
Net fair value loss N EEEFE (21,468) (27,231)
Fair value as at 31 December BW+—A=+—H8Z
~NEE 58,951 45,913

Financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are
mandatorily measured at fair value in accordance with
HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 1 Y % A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBEBZRATFEFEZ

(Continued)

The investments included above represent investments in
equity securities that offer the Group the opportunity for
return through dividend income and fair value gains. They
have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

The fair values of listed securities and derivative financial
assets are based on quoted market prices.

The realised losses and unrealised gains (2022: realised
losses and unrealised losses) on financial assets at FVTPL

MB%EE (&)
EXFBENREERREIESZR
B HEBRERARDTEYES
ATEERHEBEEG  HERE
YEEEEMEREALE -

thRBEERTEMBEEZ A TFE
TR m B E -

B2 =F+_-_A=+—81t
FE BFREZEATFETE 2

for the year ended 31 December 2023 are approximately BKEEZODEIREBREAEHKE

HK$7,165,000 (2022: HK$10,396,000) and HK$2,214,000 (CE-——F  BEREEERRER

(2022: HK$5,648,000) respectively, the aggregate of which E18) o B4 A7,165,00008 7T (= F

was recorded as net loss on financial assets at fair value — — 4% :10,396,000%8 L) &

through profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit 2,214,000 L (ZE == F :

or loss and other comprehensive income. 5,648,000 7T) + BEABEE NG
BakEMmEEKERPTAER
BaR A TEAECUBEECE
BERBEET -

RAAFR -—_BE-—=%F+-A=+—
A ERERRATEFEZFE

Particulars of the Company’s financial assets at FVTPL as
at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

BEABET :

Proportion of Net assets

investee’s Fair value ~ attributable

Place of incorporation/ Number of capital Market value/  (losses)/ to the

Name of investee company registration shares held owned Cost  fairvalue gains  Company

\ FERRRE * AE ADARE

FRELRER GLANE-En FERA%E LAERLA A nE/0TE (BE)/ME  EERE

HKGO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00D  HK$O000

T T Thn A

(8 AAGroup Limited (AR Hong Kong 19,000 Less than 1% 1,589 1298 (246) 546
RARBERERAA (RARR]) B HI%

(o Apple Inc (‘Apple’ Calfornig, US 500 Less than 1% 757 749 @ 16
Apple Inc [ Apple)) E DR1%

(c]  Bankof China Limted (BOC') PRC 300,000 Less than 1% 956 804 62 9732
RREIRAERAR (HEET)) g D%

(d  Bradaverse Education (nt'L) Ivestments Group Limited Cayman Islands 2400000 Less than 1% 3991 3,69 (299) 445

(‘Bradaverse Education’)

REEHE (BR)RASEARAA(FFE4E) AEHE D%

*E%Mm%%ﬂﬁmﬁﬂ127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 5 S % A P

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBREERAFETERZ
(Continued) MEEE (&)

Proportion of Net assets

investee’s Fair value  attributable

Place of incorporation/ Number of capital Market value/  (losses)/ to the

Name of investee company registration shares held owned Cost fair value gains  Company

FRERRE Mg ALEER

FRRLRER HRAL/ ARy fiskOEE ARERLH Af nE/AVE (BR/kE  EERE

HESO  HKSOD  HKS000  HKSOOD
Thr TRt A TEm

[ Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (‘Berkshirg') State of Delaware, US 300 Less than 1% 837 8% )] 943
Berkshire Hathaway Inc. ([ Berkshire) ZEENAN DRI

i China Energy Storage Technology Development Limited PRC 4,500,000 2.30% 6,181 922 3044 10260
((China Energy Storage')
PEERHRERARA (PHE) G

{9 China Hanking Holcings Limit ed(Chma Hanking) Cayman Islands 3800000 Less than 1% 2758 3,040 287 214
PEFIERERAA(HEAZT]) HERE Si%

(1) China International Development Gorporation Limited Cayman Islands 3064000 Less than 1% 2679 4704 202 (456)
(‘Ching Intemational Development
PHERAREMERA (PRER]) RERS D%

I China Pefroleum & Chemical Corporation (‘China Petroleu’) PRC 500000  Less than 1% 2150 2,045 (10) 17,600
AR IRAERAR (REAL) i D%

(| China Resources Beer Holdings Go Limited (‘China Resources Beer’) - Hong Kong 20000 Less than 1% 1,111 684 (4 204
SRR (R ARAT ([2REE) & Dt

() ON Logistics Infernationa Holdmgs Limited (‘CN Logistics") Cayman Islands 1,269,000  Less than 1% 9,667 7,716 (1,91) 1520
SR ARsRERAT(ZNR) REHS DR1%

(| DFIRetal Group Holdings Limited (DF) Bemuda 30,000 Lessthan 1% 690 560 (130 160
OFEEEEARARAA (DA]) BRE St

(m) FUTU Holdings Limited (FUTU) Cayman Islands 600 Less than 1% 280 26 25) 13
ERERERAA(ER)) RERS Hi%

(] Hing Ming Holdings Limited (*Hing Ming') Cayman Islands 16,328,000 4.34% 18,099 2841 (16,28) 5,263
RERRARAA (1RE]) AEES

(o) Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (*HKEX') Hong Kong 6,000 Less than 1% 201 1,608 (407) 2
FALBRERMERAR ([ FAR M) 4 HM%

(o) HKGB IBOND 2406 (*HK iBond 2406) Hong Kong 34,000 N/A 3,363 3,363 = N/A
FARIEARRE 852406 F7Bond 2406)) B i T

'] 2 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B S 5 i A W

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

2. ZBRBEREQXFEFEZ
MBEE (&)

Proportion of Net assets

investee's Fair value ~ attributable

Place of incorporation/ Number of capital Market value/  (losses)/ to the

Name of investee company registration shares held owned Cost fair value gains  Company

‘ fEsERE 178 KOFAL

fiRENT4E iRAL/ B4 FEROHA QFERLA HE TE/ATE (FE)/ME  EEWE

HKS000  HKBO00  HKSO00  HKS'0O

Thn  Thn A TR

g Microsoft Corporation ‘Microsoft) State of Washington, US 300 Less than 1% 862 878 16 -
R () FEEEEN D%

() PradaSpA Prada faly 20,000 Lessthan 1% 1,111 89 218 284
Prada SpA. ([Prad)) EXH D%

(8 Smart Cty Development Holdings Limited *Smart Cty) Cayman Islands 9,952,000 415% 8,001 4309 (3,672) 6,081

BHERARERAT (%)) REES

) Tencent Holdings Limited (‘Tencent' Cayman Islands 4000 Less than 1% 1571 1174 (397) 3
BABRARAA (&) REES D%

(i) Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (Tracker Fund') Hong Kong 80,000 Lessthan 1% 1824 1375 (449) 1374
BeRe(REEL)) s D%

() Virual Mind Holding Company Limited (‘Virual Mind') Cayman Islands 31,296,000 146% 5015 4913 (102 294

RERRARAA ([RE]) RERS
(w) wmemnmwmmwm(memm Cayman Islands 29,900,000 158% 4,967 1,864 (3,083) 1,215

KUESRRERERAA(ALES))

RERE

80419 58,951 (21,468)

A N S R A
RS R '] 29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

A brief description of the business and financial information
of the investee companies, based on their published annual

and interim reports,

results announcements and

management accounts, is as follows:

(@)

AlA is principally engaged in the writing of life
insurance business, providing life insurance, accident
and health insurance, and savings plans throughout
Asia, and distributing related investment and other
financial services products to its customers. The
audited consolidated profit (2021: profit) attributable to
owners of AlA for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately US$282,000,000 (2021:
US$7,427,000,000). As at 31 December 2022, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of AIA was approximately US$38,096,000,000
(2021: US$60,467,000,000). The unaudited
consolidated profit (2022: profit) attributable to owners
of AIA for the six months ended 30 June 2023 was
approximately US$2,250,000,000 (2022:
US$1,543,000,000). As at 30 June 2023, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of AIA was approximately US$41,791,000,000
(2022: US$41,000,000,000).

Apple is principally engaged in the provision of designs,
manufactures and markets smartphones, personal
computers, tablets, wearables and accessories, and sells
a variety of related services. The audited consolidated
profit (2022: profit) attributable to owners of Apple for the
year ended 30 September 2022 was approximately
US$96,995,000,000 (2022: US$99,803,000,000). As at
30 September 2023, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Apple was approximately

US$62,146,000,000 (2022: US$50,672,000,000).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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(€

BOC is a financial institution that provides banking
and financial services in various regions. It operates
through segments such as Corporate Banking,
Personal Banking, Treasury Operations, Investment
Banking, Insurance, and Others. The services offered
include accounts, loans, trade-related products,
wealth management, credit cards, and insurance.
They also engage in treasury operations, investment
banking, and debt-to-equity swaps. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of BOC for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB227,439,000,000. As at 31
December 2022, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of BOC was
approximately RMB2,427,589,000,000. The
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to owners
of BOC for the six months ended 30 June 2023 was
approximately RMB120,095,000,000. As at 30 June
2023, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of BOC was approximately
RMB2,515,464,000.

Bradaverse Education is principally engaged in the
provision of private educational services, which include
primary tutoring services, skill course and test
preparation courses, secondary tutoring services and
English language training and test preparation
courses. The audited consolidated loss (2022: loss)
attributable to owners of Bradaverse Education for the
year ended 30 June 2023 was approximately
HK$28,541,000 (2022: HK$32,892,000). As at 30
June 2023, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Bradverse Education was
approximately HK$111,608,000 (2022:
HK$145,801,000). The company was formerly known
as Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Limited
and changed its name to Bradaverse Education (Int’l)

Investments Group Limited in January 2023.
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(Continued) MREE (&)

() Berkshire is a multinational conglomerate involved in () Berkshire/ BB (KL E 4
insurance, transportation, utilities, and diverse iRk Bl  APEEEES
industries. They provide insurance, operate railroads, Br75 - HIRHRE - &2
generate electricity, manufacture various products, B oRE BEEEEM I
and offer services in home construction, automotive HEEZS - RETE KA
retail, furniture, and aviation, among others. The M= EEREEHRE - HE
audited consolidated loss attributable to owners of —EZZF+ZA=+—H1
Berkshire for the year ended 31 December 2022 was FE ' Berkshire# B A FE 1§ &
approximately US$22,819,000,000. As at 31 2 & 2 A B B 4 A
December 2022, the audited consolidated net asset 22 819 000, OOO%TE CcRIZE
value attributable to owners of Berkshire was — +_ A=+—8”

approximately US$472,360,000,000. The unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of Berkshire
for the nine months ended 30 September 2023 was
approximately US$58,649,000,000. As at 30
September 2023, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of Berkshire was
approximately US$525,330,000,000.

Berkshirelf 5 A FE{fh (& | 1Z 4R
A& B E F B #H A
472,360,000,000% JT - REE
—E_=FhAhA=1tHILNE
A - Berkshirelft B A FE (G & &
B2 &£ & 8 MY B
58,649,000,000E 7T - R = =
=% ALA=+H " Berkshire
HEANEBEREEZIGREEE
% {8 #9 /5525,330,000,0003
IT o

()  China Energy Storage is a value-added service provider H FPEFEEREEIN—F K]
and electronics manufacturer focused on the “Belt and BRHEEEEREERE
Road” cross-border supply chain, particularly integrates REW LEEEFEEEHR
upstream and downstream resources around the JE fE % {EHE%}%%&?—}jT}E? &R
value-added services of the targeted industry supply o BE—w BOREER
chain, and selects key countries and cities along the P ,%ﬁ@igﬁ MEeERMNE
Belt and Road route with high economic growth and PRR MM TETERAE -
high market development for strategic planning. The HE—_E-_—_F+=-_A=1+—
audited consolidated loss (2021: loss) attributable to HBILFEE +HEFEEKERE
owners of China Energy Storage for the year ended 31 EREZRGEER (ZE - —
December 2022 was approximately HK$54,042,000 F 1 E18) #4554,042,0007 T
(2021: HK$46,397,000). As at 31 December 2022, the (ZZ =~ — 4 : 46,397,000/
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to L) R Z_ZE__F+ A
owners of China Energy Storage was approximately =+—H HFEFEEZRERE
HK$359,862,000 (2021: HK$365,877,000). The EEEBERGEEEFELYA
unaudited consolidated loss (2022: loss) attributable to 359,862,000 L (ZF = —
owners of China Energy Storage for the six months % : 365,877,000/ 7T) ° B E
ended 30 June 2023 was approximately —EZ=FRNA=ZTHIEANE
HK$4,831,000 (2022: HK$13,539,000). As at 30 June B B EE 2 X R B AR AR
2023, the unaudited consolidated net asset value EREGEAEEB(ZE - —F
attributable to owners of China Energy Storage was B 18) #9 54,831,000 7T (=
approximately HK$446,359,000 (2022: T 113, 539 00078 TT) °
HK$401,140,000). The company was formerly known )j‘é:?:_i NAZ=1H &
as Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited and B & BE 2 IR BR FE (R A& |AZ LR
changed its name to China Energy Storage Technology /E.\ BEFEL 5446,359, OOO/E
Development Limited in October 2023. T(ZE == ¢ 401,140,000

IR NG %ﬁ%ﬂ%faﬁﬁl
REARREEERA
RZZTE_=%+A EE&%&%F’:
PEIFERERERBRA
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China Hanking is principally engaged in the
exploration, mining, processing and sale of mineral
resources. The Company operates its business
through three segments, namely, iron core, high-
purity iron and gold. The audited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of China Hanking for the year

ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB51,297,000. As at 31 December 2022, the

audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of China Hanking was approximately
RMB1,274,360,000. The unaudited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of China Hanking for the
six months ended 30 June 2023 was approximately
RMB33,654,000. As at 30 June 2023, the unaudited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners
of China Hanking was approximately
RMB1,312,530,000.

China International Development is principally engaged
in (i) manufacturing and distribution of leather
products; (i) retail of fashion apparel, footwear and
leather accessories; and (iii) industrial hemp planting
and production of hemp fabric products. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of China
International Development for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$18,936,000
As at 31 December 2022, the audited consolidated
net liability value attributable to owners of China
International Development was approximately
HK$46,016,000. The unaudited consolidated loss
attributable to owners of China International
Development for the six months ended 30 June 2023
was approximately HK$8,443,000. As at 30 June
2023, the unaudited consolidated net liability value
attributable to owners of China International
Development was approximately HK$52,769,000.
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China Petroleum is one of the largest integrated
energy and chemical companies in China. Its principal
operations include the exploration and production,
pipeline transportation and sale of petroleum and
natural gas; the production, sale, storage and
transportation of refinery products, petrochemical
products, coal chemical products, synthetic fibre, and
other chemical products; the import and export,
including an import and export agency business, of
petroleum, natural gas, petroleum products,
petrochemical and chemical products, and other
commodities and technologies; and research,
development and application of technologies and
information. The audited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of China Petroleum for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB66,153 million. As at 31 December 2022, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of China Petroleum was approximately
RMB784,706 million. The unaudited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of China Petroleum for the
six months ended 30 June 2023 was approximately
RMB36,122,000,000. As at 30 June 2023, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of China Petroleum was approximately
RMB795,720,000,000.
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() China Resources Beer is an investment holding () EBRBAKEERAR
company primarily involved in the manufacturing, SRR AMEEEREE LY
distribution, and sale of beer products in Mainland FE-DHEEEE HEEHZ
China. They offer various beer brands, including Nong A MR BIREERE . -
Li, Li, Lowen Fruit Beer, Snow Draft Pure Malt Beer, MRE FH2EMLERER
and Snow Xiao Pi Qi. The company was previously NS AR E—RET
known as China Resources Enterprise, Limited before FERABAEBAEETRA
changing its name in October 2015. The audited AleEHE_E-__F+=A
consolidated profit attributable to owners of China =+—HLFE EHEEES
Resources Beer for the year ended 31 December ANEEREZEESEFEH A A
2022 was approximately RMB4,344,000,000. As at 31 R #4.344,000,000C° R-F
December 2022, the audited consolidated net asset T HF+-A=+—H K #=HEe
value attributable to owners of China Resources Beer BB ABLHEEZGEEEE
was approximately RMB27,039,000,000. The FEL) A A RE27,039,000,000
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to owners of e RBZ-_ZE_=FA=1
China Resources Beer for the six months ended 30 BIEREA - = HERER AR
June 2023 was approximately RMB4,649,000,000. As (EREEIZIGESEFEBARE
at 30 June 2023, the unaudited consolidated net asset #4,649,000,0000 R =
value attributable to owners of China Resources Beer ZE=FANA=TH EHRRHR
was approximately RMB30,710,000,000. BEABRERBEREEEEF

B4 & A R#30,710,000,000
TTo
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CN Logistics is principally engaged in the provision of
comprehensive logistics services, comprising air freight
forwarding services, distribution and logistics services
as well as ocean freight forwarding services, with a
primary focus on high end fashion (including luxury
and affordable luxury) and fine wine products. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners of
CN Logistics for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately HK$86,632,000. As at 31
December 2022, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of CN Logistics was
approximately HK$352,271,000. The unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of CN
Logistics for the six months ended 30 June 2023 was
approximately HK$13,137,000. As at 30 June 2023,
the unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of CN Logistics was approximately
HK$330,813,000.

DFl is an Asian retailer operating in various segments,
including food, health and beauty, home furnishings,
restaurants, and other retailing. They operate grocery
stores under multiple brands, convenience stores
under 7-Eleven, health and beauty stores under
Mannings and Guardian, home furnishings under IKEA,
and restaurants under Maxim’s. The audited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of DFI for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
US$114,600,000. As at 31 December 2022, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of DFl was approximately US$947,100,000.
The unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
owners of DFI for the six months ended 30 June 2023
was approximately US$8,200,000. As at 30 June
2023, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of DFI was approximately
US$920,700,000. The company was previously known
as Dairy Farm International Holdings Limited.
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FUTU provides digitalized securities brokerage and
wealth management services globally. They offer
online financial services, including securities trading,
margin financing, and fund distribution through their
Futubull and Moomoo platforms. The company also
provides financial information, online community
services, and wealth management solutions. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners of
FUTU for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately US$375,178,000. As at 31 December
2022, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of FUTU was approximately
US$2,674,043,000. The unaudited consolidated
profit attributable to owners of FUTU for the nine
months ended 30 September 2023 was
approximately US$434,598,000. As at 30
September 2023, the unaudited consolidated net
asset value attributable to owners of FUTU was
approximately US$3,004,757,000.

Hing Ming is principally engaged in providing rental
services of temporary suspended working platforms
and other equipment such as tower cranes and
generators and trading of equipment and spare parts.
The audited consolidated profit (2022: loss)
attributable to owners of Hing Ming for the year ended
31 March 2023 was approximately HK$2,369,000
(2022: HK$3,035,000). As at 31 March 2023, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of Hing Ming was approximately
HK$117,460,000 (2022: HK$121,354,000). The
unaudited consolidated profit (2022: profit) attributable
to owners of Hing Ming for the six months ended 30
September 2023 was approximately HK$3,737,000
(2022: HK$5,865,000). As at 30 September 2023, the
unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of Hing Ming was approximately
HK$121,197,000 (2022: HK$126,028,000).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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HKEX owns and operates stock exchanges, futures
exchanges, and clearing houses in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, and the UK. They facilitate trading
and clearing of various financial products and
provide market data services. They also offer
clearing, settlement, and technology services. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners of
HKEX for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$10,078,000,000. As at 31
December 2022, the audited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of HKEX was
approximately HK$49,728,000,000. The unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of HKEX
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 was
approximately HK$6,312,000,000. As at 30 June
2023, the unaudited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of HKEX was approximately
HK$51,650,000,000.

HK iBond 2406 is a retail bond issued by The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the People’s Republic of China, with the
maturity date of 23 June 2024. It pay interest every 6
months and the coupon rate is based on the higher of
(a) the floating rate, being the arithmetic average of the
year-on-year rates of change in the Composite
Consumer Price Index compiled and published by the
Census and Statistics Department of HKSAR
Government based on the results of the most recent
Household Expenditure Survey at the relevant interest
determination date (currently being the 2014/15-based
Composite Consumer Price Index) for the 6 most
recent preceding months, rounded to the nearest two
decimal places; and (b) the fixed rate of 2.00%.
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Microsoft develops and supports software, services,
devices, and solutions worldwide. They have three
segments: Productivity and Business Processes,
Intelligent Cloud, and More Personal Computing.
They offer office productivity tools, cloud services,
business solutions, Windows operating system,
devices, and gaming products. Microsoft sells its
products through various channels. The audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of
Microsoft for the year ended 30 June 2023 was
approximately US$72,361,000,000. As at 30 June
2023, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Microsoft was
approximately US$206,223,000,000.

Prada is a global company that designs, produces,
and distributes luxury fashion items and accessories. It
operates under various brands and sell their products
through owned stores, franchises, department stores,
independent retailers, and e-commerce channels. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to owners of
Prada for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately EUR571,683,000. As at 31 December
2022, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Prada was approximately
EUR2,563,426,000. The unaudited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of Prada for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 was approximately
EURB305,168,000. As at 30 June 2023, the unaudited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of
Prada was approximately EUR3,521,241,000.
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2. ZBRBEREQXFEFEZ

MBEE (&)

(@)

MBI KA BEY TR -
wE REBEEMBATR IE
ZROE  EENEERRE
CEERIRNELZEAESE - H
RHMATEENTE  Ein
IR  WMEBRBEAFR -
WindowstEX R4t ~ 3£ B K iz
BER MEERASEREN
EER REE-_ZT-_=F,
A=1THLEE HE#EEA
BEREZEE NN A
72,361,000,000Fk L e R =&
—=FXNA=+8 " mEBES
AEHEEZREEEFEY
£206,223,000,000% 7T °

m]]]m“

PradaB st - A E KD HE
ERHNEMIEHAOZIRA
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NEFHEBEREHEEER- &
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=+—H  Prada® & AES
KEREEEEFENR
2,563,426,0008( 7T - RE £ =
E-=ZFXNA=1THILNE
A ' Pradai® B A B REE
%57 A w49 A&305,168,000EK
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iR A BEEFEDNAB
3,521,241,0008X 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBEBZRATFEFEZ

(Continued)

(s)

Smart City is principally engaged in the activities of
construction business, as a main contractor and fitting
out works, as well as the provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering services, mainly in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and Macau, and other
construction related businesses. Their other business
include investment in securities, property investment
as well as money lending. The audited consolidated
loss (2022: profit) attributable to owners of Smart City
for the year ended 31 March 2023 was approximately
HK$10,975,000 (2022: HK$15,336,000). As at 31
March 2023, the audited consolidated net asset value
attributable to owners of Smart City was
approximately HK$150,941,000 (2022:
HK$130,371,000). The unaudited consolidated loss
(2022: loss) attributable to owners of Smart City for
the six months ended 30 September 2023 was
approximately HK$4,300,000 (2022: HK$3,785,000).
As at 30 September 2023, the unaudited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Smart City
was approximately HK$146,641,000 (2022:
HK$126,586,000).

MBEE (&)

(s)

EWMEZERE HEA K
BPIERBRARE N BRET
¥ BBEIR UREHKS
TR AR E MR EAE S
o HEMEBBIEFELFERE
MERERBREEE - HEZ
ET-_=F=ZA=+—BILtHF
B B2 REBGLEEIZE
EER(CZE_F 58 Y
£10,975,0008 L (ZF = =
F 115,336,000 7C) - R=Z
—=F=ZRA=+—8 EHZ
REELHEEZGEEETE
#) /5150,941,0008 L (= &
— — % :130,371,00058 7T) °
HE_Z-_=FNLA=+HIt
NER - BW 2 REEGRE
BEREGRAEEBEBR(ZE==

E518) #9 &4,300,000/ 7T (=
T — — 4 : 3,785,000 7T) °
RZEBE-_=FALA=+H" '8
WRREERECEZEEE
E FE X £146,641,000/ T
(ZT =— —F : 126,586,000/

JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 20. ZBEBZRATFEFEZ

(Continued)

(t)

Tencent is principally engaged in the provision of
value-added services, online advertising services and
fintech, and business services. The audited
consolidated profit (2021: profit) attributable to owners
of Tencent for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB188,243,000,000 (2021:
RMB224,822,000,000). As at 31 December 2022, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of Tencent was approximately
RMB721,391,000,000 (2021: RMB806,299,000,000).
The unaudited consolidated profit (2022: profit)
attributable to owners of Tencent for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 was approximately
RMB52,009,000,000 (2022: RMB42,032,000,000). As
at 30 June 2023, the unaudited consolidated net asset
value attributable to owners of Tencent was
approximately RMB778,296,000,000 (2022:
RMB736,494,000,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BHE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 0. ZBBEHRAFETEZ
(Continued) MBEE (&)
(u) The Tracker Fund’s objective is to provide investment W BEELASERMERAEAL

results that closely correspond to the performance of
the Hang Seng Index. The audited loss (2021: loss)
attributable to owners of Tracker Fund for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$13,516,729,000 (2021: HK$13,525,529,000). As
at 31 December 2022, the audited net asset value
attributable to owners of Tracker Fund was
approximately HK$130,770,766,000 (2021:

BHERACKRENBE 2R ST
EEE® - @3_2::

+—A=+—HILFE &

%‘i\%ﬁ)\r&‘1£i<<<%$‘zﬁéﬂéi(:
T —F :FBBE)ANA
13,516,729,000/8 T (= F = —
1 13,525,529,000/& 7T) ° B
- _F+=-HA=+—8"

HK$100,071,497,000). The unaudited loss (2022: loss) BEESHEA AEHREZRE
attributable to owners of Tracker Fund for the six B F{E 4 5130,770,766,000/%
months ended 30 June 2023 was approximately T (= & — — &
HK$3,980,777,000 (2022: HK$3,296,076,000). As at 100,071,497,000 7T) - & &
30 June 2023, the unaudited net asset value —E-=FEXA=+HIEAE

attributable to owners of Tracker Fund was
approximately HK$128,911,496,000 (2022:
HK$114,242,567,000).

Virtual Mind is principally engaged in the activities of
design, manufacture and trading of apparel, namely
apparel operation; provision of money lending
business, namely money lending operation; and selling
of gaming and animated characters related products,
namely intellectual property application and products
operation. The audited consolidated loss attributable

B BEESHE ABRERKE
EREBEBE(ZE__F : H1E)
49 /3,980,777,000/8 7t (=&
— T4 :3,296,076, ooo;%y_ﬂ
AZE_=FA=1H"
Ea%i%ﬁ/\mﬁﬂ«%ff?éf
E R E 4 5128,911,496,000/%5
T (Z & = = F
114,242,567,000/8 7T) °

AT BN IR - HE
&féf% BIRReh 75 IR E
AR - BERREER
&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@&@%%@*ﬁ%@%

CHIABEREARERE
ﬂ‘%é@) S S
AZ+—HLEFE  REZK

to owners of Virtual Mind for the year ended 31 HELRREZEAEBENS
December 2022 was approximately HK$65,895,000. 65,895,000/ L - M T - =

As at 31 December 2022, the audited consolidated
net asset value attributable to owners of Virtual Mind
was approximately HK$208,432,000. The unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Virtual Mind
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 was
approximately HK$21,251,000. As at 30 June 2023,
the unaudited consolidated net asset value attributable
to owners of Virtual Mind was approximately
HK$201,041,000. The company was previously known
as CEFC Hong Kong Financial Investment Company
Limited before changing its name to Virtual Mind
Holding Company Limited.

F+-_A=+—8 ' KEEZK
RELEEZGEEEFED
£208,432,0008 L c HE-F
—=FXNA=1+HLAEAR -
A2 REE(EREFIZEE
B 18 #) &21,251,000/ 7T ° A
TE-=FXA=1+H K#
ZBRREEBIEREEZEEEE
Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁ¢%201 041,000/ JT ° #%
RAIFIEAEBEECHITE
BRAR WERZTEA KK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL
(Continued)

(W)

Volcano Spring is principally engaged in the
development, manufacturing and selling of kitchen
appliances in the PRC. The audited consolidated loss
(2021: loss) attributable to owners of Volcano Spring
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB43,213,000 (2021:
RMB44,353,000). As at 31 December 2022, the
audited consolidated net asset value attributable to
owners of Volcano Spring was approximately
RMB80,363,000 (2021: RMB124,268,000). The
unaudited consolidated loss (2022: loss) attributable to
owners of Volcano Spring for the six months ended 30
June 2023 was approximately RMB20,610,000 (2022:
RMB18,207,000). As at 30 June 2023, the unaudited
consolidated net asset value attributable to owners of
Volcano Spring was approximately RMB71,236,000
(2022: RMB106,040,000). The company was
previously known as Miji International Holdings Limited
before changing its name to Volcano Spring
International Holdings Limited in July 2023.

21. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

2. ZRBERELXFEFEZ

MB%EE (&)
W) KUBBHEBETEREFERE

BEEMNMAE RENKEE B
E_F-__F+-_H=+—H
HFE - ALSBEF ARG
REZGAER(ZE-—%F:
E18) 498 AR #43,213,0007C

T2 - —F: ARK
44,353,0007T) e R—ZE - —

+=—A=+—H  ALEE#
EARNEEZEAEEFE
#) 5 N R #80,363,0007T (=&
——F: AR%124,268,000
L) cHE T -_=F XA
=F+HEANEAR - ALEEE
BEANEMREEZGABE (=
T F EBER)VAAREK
20,610,0007c(ZFE == : A
R #18,207,0007T) e R =&
—=ZFXA=Z+H " XLUEH
EEABEREEZEREEE
FEL B A KRET1,236,0007T
(ZEZ2F : AR %
106,040,0007T) ° #% A &) A &
AR BRBERAER AR I
R_E-_=F+AEKREEA
NI BBEBRIERAER AT -

21. BERFANRE

2023 2022
—E-= —ET_—

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FA&T
Deposits Ee 62 62
Prepayments AR 444 23
506 85

Analysed as: DA
Non-current assets IERBEE 60 60
Current assets MEEE 446 25
506 85
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B U 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

22, LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HE&EE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BERERE BERERENRE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—ECzE it Sl ZE-=E —EoCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TiEn Tan Tin
Within one year —ER 94 282 93 268
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEENF
(RRERME) - 94 - 9
94 376 923 361
Less: Future finance charges B AREEE (1) (15) N/A FE R N/A R B
Present value of lease obligations HEXERE 93 361 93 361
Less: Amount due for settlement within i W W
12 months (shown under HBERZ
current liabilties) (BIA /@DE T ) (93) (268)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months T A& ZIBER
LB - 93

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liability is 6.94% (2022: 6.94%).

All lease liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

HEaBEERMNNETHIEEEE
AZEEB.I4% (ZE-—F:6.94%) °

FEHEREHNAEITFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 5 S % A P

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. R
Number of
ordinary shares Par value
EEBR¥E E{E
Note HK$'000
P 5t THL
Authorised: BE
At 1 January 2022 RW-_E-—"%—A—H
Ordinary shares of BRAEBECETERR
HK$0.2 each 1,500,000,000 300,000

Capital reduction AR/ (a) 28,500,000,000 N/A M E R

Share consolidation ftn & b (o) (22,500,000,000) N/A T

At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 and R=ZT==F+=-f=1—

31 December 2023 A-ZZ-=%—-A—-HkK
e =l =
Crediting shares of HK$0.04 each FREE04ETTL
STARR 7,500,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—_%—-Hf—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each FREE004ETZ ERK 231,264,988 46,253

Capital reduction BAEIR (@ - (43,940)

Share consolidation B &0t (b) (173,448,741) -

Issue of share on Rights Issue R ETRN (©) 115,632,494 4,625

At 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023and R-ZE-—F+_-A=+—

31 December 2023 A-ZZ-=%—-A—-HK
T+ -A=1-A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each FREE04ETZ ERK 173,448,741 6,938

Note: BT -

(@) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the @ BEARATIRERE-_ZT-_—_F=A
Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 15 March +THRBETHREERAS F@BH
2022, the issued share capital of the Company was proposed to be BRAZE BREATHEAER
reduced by reducing the par value of each of the issued shares of REERDEZETIRMH0I1GE T B E
the Company from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up AR T TR Z B EB0.205
capital to the extent of HK$0.19 per issued share (the “Capital TCEI Z0.0138 7T - AR A AT 2
Reduction”). Part of the credit arising from such reduction would be DEITIRA ([BARYIR]) o sz8 B8
applied towards cancelling the accumulated loss of the Company, RS ENER AR B K 25k
while the balance (if any) would be transferred to the share premium g Mt (nE) BEBREARD TN
account of the Company which may be utilized by the directors as a 15 EEE - A A E B AN 8 A 48
distributable reserve in accordance with the articles of association of % FRAUN R4 ([488) ) AR FrA @

the Company (the “Articles”) and all applicable laws. Immediately

following the Capital Reduction becomes effective, each authorized
but unissued share will also be sub-divided into 20 new shares with
a par value of HK$0.01 each. On 20 July 2022, the Grand Court of
the Cayman Islands granted an order to confirm the capital
reduction of the Company and the Capital Reduction became
effective on 25 July 2022. Details of which were disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 21 February 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 1 Y % A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23. %221:( i(j)%)
Vet - (A8

Note: (Continued)

(b)  On 21 September 2022, the Company consolidated every four by RZE_—_FNAA=-+—H ' £KQF
issued and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the AR BRRARR FOIRE 1T R AR
share capital of the Company be consolidated into one consolidated TERBEEOIE TN EH A —
share of par value of HK$0.04 each. f& IR EE0.04B TR A IRID »

(¢ On 28 July 2022, the Company entered into an underwriting ) RZZE_—_F+tA=-+/\H' &KQF
agreement with Lego Securities Limited in respect of the Right Issue HAmERFARABSERET
up to 115,632,494 Rights Shares at HK$0.38 each to certain ek WIREROISE THMETAEE
qualifying shareholders. The intended and actual use of proceeds 1% I% 3R 2% 17 5 % 115,632,494 % £ B A%
from the Rights Issue certain was for general working capital and e HBRMEBREBEZHELERAE
investments. R—BREEESRIKRE -

The transaction was completed on 27 October 2022. The Rights HRSER_E-__F+A=-++H
Shares are fully subscribed by the shareholders and the obligations TR © ,\J‘& B HREEHAE
under the Underwriting Agreement has been fully discharged. A total MEHEHEE N2 ST RO RBETT -
of 115,632,494 shares were issued. The gross and net proceeds 4 #£115,632, 494HxHx1’ EEEITF
were approximately HK$43,940,000 and HK$42,118,000 BRBEBRBERIFEDINNA
respectively. The net price was approximately HK$0.364 per Rights 43, 940 00078 7T }&42,118,000/% 7T ° &
Share. PR BRI 15 5 (B 40 R0.36478 7T °

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: REBESBEEAE BER

()  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a () HENEERIBELLES
going concern, so that it continues to provide returns FHIFZEABHERERDRE
and benefits for stakeholders; Mz

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and (i) HEAEBIETHERIEER:

&

(i) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the (iy HEEANEBERELREIEENIE
Group’s risk management capability. e N

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its EZERINAKEFBZRKERERKEE

capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and $,\Tﬁl¥ B REABEFES T8

shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future ARER S ne  BAEAFEY R

capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency, }E\ BIRESIEER S NEBRERKRTE

prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating Hif st R B IR H A NEERE AR

cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected EMERNEEEIRERD R o

strategic investment opportunities.

The Group also balances its overall capital structure NEEB IR E R 7 LR B AR o

periodically. The Group manages the capital structure and ANEEBSBHENEE  WEFEL

makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic EIEREE) B EE AR IS
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying 1’E PEEHAE . AREBERNFEEA

assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 2R z]g;’%- ] BE 5 B 1Ay A% ROE 5

the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to TR B EIE A AR B R B 2N 5k 3%

shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new TR - AREBTSEREE# ST

shares. The Group will also consider the raise of long-term B EEEHEENREDZKEEES
borrowings as second resource of capital when investment 72— MZERERRINE

opportunities arise and the return of such investments will L HT S (ERKANBEEF o

justify the cost of debts from the borrowings.

A N S R A
RS R '] 45
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The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
shareholders’ equity. Total debt comprises borrowings and
lease liabilities. Total equity comprises all components of
equity. The Group aims to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio
at a reasonable level. The debt-to-equity ratio as the end of
the reporting period was as follow:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

23. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 23. A (&)

p

AEEREFER L RERERE
Koo R RIABEBIR AR R E
miE - REKEREEREEER
B o A TR B TE M a5 Y P B AE K AT
Do AREMBENRKERHERLL
REBESENKF -RBEHK
B ES LRI

L

e

2023 2022

—E-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&ET
Lease liabilities HEAE 93 361
Total debt BEK 93 361
Total equity RS 60,170 68,137
Debt-to-equity ratio ERERLE 0.2% 0.5%

The decrease in the debt-to-equity ratio during 2023
primarily resulted from decrease in lease liabilities.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it
has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group received a report from share registrars on substantial
share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrated continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

24. AR A BARR KRB
BE

(a) A2DF IR K

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2023 2022
—_E-= —=E-=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 7E FET FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #13 « B /E & = -
Right-of-use assets EREEE - -
Refundable rental deposit AREEE KL 60 60
60 60
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BBBRE AR
FE 2 58,951 45,913
Deposits and prepayments e RIER K 446 25
Bank and cash balances R1T MR &4 1,179 22933
60,576 68,871
Current liabilities nREBAE
Accruals st ER 373 433
Lease liabilities HEAE 93 268
466 701
Net current assets mEEEFE 60,110 68,170
Total assets less current MEERRBAR
liabilities 60,170 68,230
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE - 93
NET ASSETS EEFE 60,170 68,137
Equity attributable to owners ZA2QREAH A
of the company PEAL R 2=
Share capital 5 23 6,938 6,938
Reserves f# % 25 53,232 61,199
TOTAL EQUITY RS 60,170 68,137

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 February

2024 and is signed on its behalf by:

REE

HITEF

Lui Cheuk Hang Henri

Executive Director

RZE-_WNF_A-+=ZBK
BExeENBAUTESEAR
BE

Chiu Tak Wai
HER
Executive Director

HITEF

A N S R A
ZERICESER 47



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

24. AT M BRR KK E
2 (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EATFEESE
Capital
Share reduction Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BAHH
R &EE fife i ER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiTL T THT T
At 1 January 2022 RZZ--%-F-H 299,332 19,444 (318,558) 218
Total comprehensive income for -~ FR2ENGER

the year - - (20,451) (20451)
Capital reduction (note 23(@) & A%&IEL (FiTE23(a)) - - 43,940 43,940
Issue of shares on Right lssue ~ ERE & TR (F322(0))

(note 22(c)) 39,315 - - 39,315
Share issue expenses OEL5T (1,823) - - (1,829)
At 31 December 2022 and RZE_ZFt-A=t-H

1 January 2023 k-2-=%-7-H 336,824 19,444 (295,069) 61,199
Total comprehensive income for - A2 ENGER

the year - - (7,967) (7,967)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=#+-A=1+-A 336,824 19,444 (303,0360) 53,232

‘I 4 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

25. RESERVES 25. f# 1@

Nature and purpose of reserves

REzZHERBEHN

(i) Share premium account () R @ER
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the BERSEEQRE KR F
funds in the share premium account of the Company e im BRRE & Al IR 7R
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company RNAIZIRR  EREREED
provided that immediately following the date on which KR EEBNAE  ARRIER
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the RENBEEEBBEKTIE
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as ZETE o B % B IR Al LA SR
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The AR AADIK °
share premium may also be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

(i) Capital reduction reserve (i) EXERFE

Capital reduction reserve represents the credit arising
from the reduction of par value of issued share capital
after cancelling the accumulated losses of the
Company in 2012. The reserve may be utilised by the
directors as a distributable reserve in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company and all
applicable laws.

26. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
The calculation of the net asset value per share is based on
the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023 is
approximately HK$60,170,000 (2022: HK$68,137,000) and
the new number of ordinary shares upon completion of
rights issue of 181,050,080 (2022 (re-presented):
181,050,080) in issue.

BAEREEER T —=F
AR AN A A R T B B R E BH
MEETIRANEEZ AR - &
BRABREFREARAEBE
RARMNEMAERAGRER
T Ik

26. BREEEE

BREEFENEBR_Z-_=F
T A=+ —BAKEEEFEN
60,170,000 L (Z & = =
68,137,000 7T ) KRR T 18 2
2 17 E B EE 181,050,0800%
(ZZE=F (& 75)
181,050,0800% ) 51 & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 5 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. MEHRERERNT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEKWBAQTF
Disposal of China Finance Qianhai Limited, China HEDESFEEERAE
Finance Qianhai (Hong Kong) Limited, and & #( & i 5 & A 5T (& E) ERA &
EREREZER A F (collectively “Qianhai Group”) R EREREERAF

(A EEE )

On 1 April 2022, the Group disposed of the entire RZEBE-__FWMA—H: A&
issued share capital in China Finance Qianhai Limited HERRESRAEERA A
(“CFQL”) at a cash consideration of HK$1. [((&®AIE]) 2BE TR

- RERE/EBT-

CFQL is indirectly holding 100% equity interest of %% SRR EBTHERINE (F
B EREREHBR A G, through China Finance BERAGEERELRE
Qianhai (Hong Kong) Limited. ZREREBR AR Z100%

ARHE -
Net assets of Qianhai Group at the date of disposal ASBEEREERBHFEE
were as follows: o

HK$’000
FERT

Deposit and other receivable 1R& & E A FE W kI8 2
Accrual and other payables FEETE A R E M KA (3)
Amount due to ultimate holding company & S 4% i A 7] 5038 (738)
Net liabilities disposed of HEFAME (739)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNB AR W 1
Consideration RE (738)
Satisfied by: RN X
Waiver of intercompany debts RN RNAIRES (738)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HESHMWRESRAFE -

‘I 5 China Financial Leasing Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 27. ZEHERERME (8)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEIBHFEEZEEYHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s THREIEREBBELENHN
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both SEEEED RERSKIE
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from Re2y METBMELEZ
financing activities are those for which cash flows BEEASREXHEREER
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the EENAEBGEERERER
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash DERBMELTHMELR SR
flows from financing activities. BEZBE-
New leases 31 December
1 January 2023 entered Cash flows  Non-cash item 2023
ZEC-CE —EC=E

-A-H EER RERE  FNWEWE TZA=T-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tén TEn Tén Tén

Lease liabities (note 22) REAE(MH2) 360 - (267) - 9
360 - (267) - 93

New leases 31 December

1 January 2022 entered Cashflows ~ Non-cash item 2022

~A-H AR RERE  FRLER T-AZT-H
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TiEm ThL TiT T T

Lease libilties (note 22) HEak(Mit2) % 529 (265) - 360
96 529 (265) - 360

Note: B 5T -

The non-cash item represented the early extinguishment of the RSB ERRBLORATLLL -

lease.

R R A A 4.5
ZRI=ESEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o 1 5 e 3 B G
For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-T-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows for leases comprise the following:

27. GERERERME (F)

(c) HERESRHAE

HeBRERERAMFARE
HFRIR B A N &R

2023 2022

—E-=F —E -
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Within operating cash flows KEHSRE 15 21
Within financing cash flows MEREGRE 267 264
282 285

These amounts relate to the following:

ZELRELTHEE AR

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Lease rental paid [RENEikq 282 285

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

China Financial Leasing Group Limited
Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 Y 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+_-_A=+—HIt=EE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 20. BEFXZ

Compensation of key management personnel TEEEBEAEZHE
The remuneration of directors and other key management FN BEENHEMFEEIEAEZ
during the year was as follows: T -
2023 2022
—E-= —_FE_—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Short-term benefits % HATR A 1,409 1,511
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 A 14 20
Termination benefits BRI E T 44 28
1,467 1,559
30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 30. REHRSEE
PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Realised gains and unrealised gains on financial
assets at FVTPL

The realised losses and unrealised losses on financial
assets at FVTPL from changes in fair value on financial
assets at FVTPL held as at 31 December 2023 to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements were amounted to approximately
HK$56,000 and HK$3,835,000 respectively.

Rights issue

On 1 December 2023, the Company entered into an
underwriting agreement with Lego Securities Limited in
respect of the rights issue up to 173,448,741 rights
share at HK$0.12 each to certain qualifying
shareholders. The intended and actual use of
proceeds from the Right Issue certain was for general
working capital and investments.

The transaction was completed on 20 February 2024.
A total of 173,448,741 shares were issued. The gross
and net proceeds was approximately HK$20,860,000
and HK$19,460,000 respectively. The net price was
approximately HK$0.11 per right share.

@

(b)

ERBEBZRATENE HMEE
E2CRRWERRSHWKE
R-_E-_=F#+=-A=+—H
ERAVBRAEERE
FIERERRATEFEZ
VBEEZ A FEEHMEL
MBBESEATEFTE 2
BEEZEEBEEBIEAENR
& 18 o Bl 4 A56,000/8 7T &
3,835,000/ 7T

5354

R-_ZE-_=F+=-HA—H" 'K
ARIENESESHFBR ARG
RV BEHZE REER
0128 LA TEBERREE
1TH& %173,448,741 B 1t A% A%
Mo mERAMEREBECBERLE
LHRA—REEESRINE -

ZRXRZGER T _NF - A
“t+HREK A KB
173,448,741/ %15 » BT {5 7 IAE
wEKEKTFES NN B
20,860,000 7T % 19,460,000
B BERERBHFELNE
011 T °
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T AR S 55

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, is set out below. The
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

kB KBV B RR 2 RORET K
FREZAKBRAGEBEANREERE
BEZHMEBHNTX - HBY MERER
G ERR 2D °

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZEZ=f —T-_-— 2% —T-FF —“E-NF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TAET TAET TET
RESULTS E
Revenue WA 758 155 95 113 1
Loss before tax B AIEE (7,967) (20,502) (61,597) (19,807) (65,683)
Income tax expenses FIBRAX - - - - -
Loss for the year attributable to A A BB AJEE
owners of the Company FEBE (7,967) (20,502) (51,597) (19,807) (65,683)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 60 60 164 404 17,182
Current assets MEBEE 60,576 68,871 46,891 87,636 69,917
Current liabilities REERE 466 701 533 (7,467) (17,665)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 93 - (96) (220)
Net assets attrioutable to RAREE AN
owners of the Company BEFE 60,170 68,137 46,522 80,477 69,214
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

LUI Cheuk Hang Henri

CHIU Tak Wai

Independent non-executive Directors
HUI Yat On

CHAN Pak Lam, Tom

LAU Kin Shing, Charles

COMPANY SECRETARY
Paul YAU

AUDIT COMMITTEE
HUI Yat On (chairman)
CHAN Pak Lam, Tom

LAU Kin Shing, Charles

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CHAN Pak Lam, Tom (chairman)

HUI Yat On

LAU Kin Shing, Charles

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
LAU Kin Shing, Charles (chairman)

HUI Yat On

CHAN Pak Lam, Tom

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

HONG KONG

11/F., Wui Tat Centre

55 Connaught Road West
Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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INVESTMENT MANAGER RELE

Avia Asset Management Limited ELEEEERR AR
Unit A, Level 9, Fortis Tower >

77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai BT ETITET7-T95%
Hong Kong BEBANEIEAE
AUDITOR %D

RSM Hong Kong R G ERAT
Certified Public Accountants HED AT

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor ARz EREZE AT
CUSTODIANS AE™

Supreme China Securities Limited BHEZFHSABRA A
Interactive Brokers Hong Kong Limited RBEBHBBERAT
Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited BAZBERE (EE)BRAA
HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND EERMBFEESLE
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited B EERERERAT

17th Floor A

Far East Finance Centre BB 165%

No. 16 Harcourt Road RRE PO

Hong Kong 1718

PRINCIPAL BANKERS FTEFRIEIT

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited ERIBIT(FE)BARAT
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited PEIERTT (BB) BRAA
STOCK CODE iz 151X 5%

2312 2312

WEBSITE 84k
http://www.cflg.com.hk http://www.cflg.com.hk

The English and Chinese version of this Report can be downloaded from the Company’s website and can be
obtained from the Hong Kong share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. In the event of any difference, the
English version prevails.

RRENPERAARLRRRFEETE - TAIEFERNDEFELREESERARQARR - A
EAZEE  BARRKRBE -
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